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Financial Highlights
BT

For the year ended 31 December
BE+_A=+—HLEE

2007 2006
ZEEtH ZETARF
Audited Audited
BEZ KEZ Change
HK$’000 HK$'000 b=
FH&T FHET %
Turnover A 6,493,394 4,523,826 +44
Gross profit EAH 1,105,781 899,886 +23
Net profit for the year REFZHF 702,029 532,046 +32
EPS S
— Basic — EK HK$1.497%E ;t IGISIREY:w +30
— Diluted —#E HK$1.46 & T HK$1.13%8 7T +29
DPS B E
— Interim — R A GLEIPLTE  HK$0.23 7 7T +9
— Final — RH GLEIENFEEA  HK$0.25 78 7T +20

Total: wEr GLEOREFESA  HK$0.4878 7T +15

ENEEBEARART - —ZETLFFR 03



Financial Highlights (continued)
HHHE @

Analysis of EBITDA, gross, operating and net profit margins (%)
RAFE BE - FERBHTHOANE B8 BEEMNRAETESHT(%)
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Financial Highlights (continued)
HHHE @

Turnover by geographical segments Turnover by business segments
BEMESBEESZEER REBHREDZIEER

Others E A 1%

USA =B 1%

Europe BN 4%
Hong Kong &% 3%
Japan B 2%
South Korea FI%% 9%

2% Electronic Consumer
Products
BT HEBEEM
China Bl 80%

98% LCD Products
BREETRED

Others E At 1%

USA =B 1.9%
Europe B 4.5%
Hong Kong &% 4.6%
Japan B 3%

South Korea fF#% 5%

3% Electronic Consumer
Products

China Bl 80%
EFHEER

97% LCD Products
BREBETREES

LCD sales breakdown

REBETHEHERA
CSTN LCD
CSTN LCD o
o L aco ¥ B sE 29%
7F/éﬁ%?;;§g§ 15% T

Mono STN & TN LCD
BESTNEIN 21%
R e R AR

Mono STN & TN LCD
BEESINEIN 25%
B BN A

TFT 60% TFT 50%

ENEBEARAR - —ZBTRLFFR 05
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The Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

| am pleased to announce the Group’s audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2007 with significant growth in both
turnover and net profit. By the successful implementation of the
Group’s first TFT-LCD ("Thin Film Transitor-Liquid Crystal Display”)
panel production line in the third quarter of the year and the

rapid increase in its productivity and production yield during the
fourth quarter, we are now in a position to label ourselves as one
of the best players in the small size display industry in the global
perspective.

Consistent with the interim period, significant growth in sales was
concentrated in the Group’s LCD business which accounted for
approximately 98% of the consolidated turnover. The three key
components in the LCD sales during the year were TFT (60%),
Colour Super-twisted Nematic ("“CSTN”) LCD (15%) and Mono-
STN and TN LCD displays and modules (25%). Besides having

a dominant market-share in the China handset display market
especially by our distinctive TFT products as evidenced by our
excellent turnover growth for the year in that region, we also made
an exceptional performance in other regions like South Korea,
Europe, etc. We also see huge new business opportunities in areas
like Eastern Europe, North America and India in which we will put
much more marketing efforts to explore in the coming years.

In January 2008, the Group announced the purchase of equipment
to further increase the production capability and efficiency for both
TFT and CSTN panels by investing approximately HK$580 million
and HK$200 million respectively. By the time we possess these
production facilities during the year, our cost of production will be
further reduced to cater especially for those sales orders that require
highly customised designs and small volume business which are
normally of higher profit margins and regularly long-term demands.

Even though we see an upcoming market opportunity and anticipate
to offer a more competitive product range to our customers, we

do not under-estimate the negative impacts by the increases of the
overall factory overheads in our unique China Manufacturing Base
due to the continuous appreciation of Renminbi ("RMB"), increased
wages and production overheads because of the general inflation

in the PRC and our dedication to investments in R&D and human
resources. A number of measures have been implemented since last
year including the increase in production automation, cost cutting

Truly International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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ERAEBRIRSEE=FTELRE—
BTFT-LCD([H R ERB- R RARE A
REER  URFENFEZEESGNEE
MERERRRER  BRiASEEE Y
BHUNRIERES TR 2 BARERITY -

AP HEERAT  AEBHEEENKNEE
EEFERENEAEESRAEERY
98% 2 LCD 7 o AFELCDIHE ) =&
BAKE D ATFT(60%) ¥ & B A M
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BESTNKETN LCDEARES MR (25%) °
FRARNEBTFTEREEBERR &
FRFEBREMSRFETEMA - W
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REBFBEERE - LEZENRNES T
EEXRE# Wi BIERREFZSNAK
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S8BT R2EB THEREERE  NE
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EEMRAGE—FS TR EMEJEER
EREBEU RN EEBNEETE
ZEIEREAALAEETRESHNFE
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The Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FFEHREE @

campaigns and the hedging of RMB and other financial exposures.
These measures are expected to maintain for a longer period of
time to achieve the best results.

Amid the current unfavourable global financial market situation, we
believe our business is going to further develop in a healthy manner.
Our long-term goal will still be maintained at making an organic
growth in every vital part in the organisation on the solid platform
we have been building up for nearly 30 years of the Group’s history.
People based philosophy and environmental protection concepts
are always of the same importance and position among other
performance indicators in our course of business. Together with

the consistently better than average returns on the shareholders’
equity, the management are confident of leading the Company to a
prosperous future.

Last but not least, | would like to thank our shareholders, business
partners, staff and workers for their continuous support to the

growth of the Group.

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2008

EBBEREE - BIBRARERARE R
Hf iRk - MR SHEER BB
R BB LERSERR -

BEOCHZREMMESLERRE THE
= ERMBGEAKRENEBEKIFERR
BR - BREASBEO=-TFNERER
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BEBASBREANEBYEE RS A KIZ
R UTARAEEZEHER - UARK
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B o R B R IREHERF R FHKF
MERAEAR  EEEBREAEIFTEAR
AERE MEEMARK -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

&I B RS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The robust growth in sales during the first half year of 2007 was
extended to the next six months making a new record for the
whole year period. The combinations of a strong marketing force
both in China and the HK Offices, a fully-dedicated team of R&D
and production manpower in the factories and the highly efficient
purchasing, logistic and other support services of the Group had
created a legend of nearly 44% business growth during this
memorable year. Apart from the diversifications of our display
products to applications like automotive, industrial and medical
equipment, the Group’s sales by geographical segments were also
covering some immerging markets like India, Eastern European
countries, etc.

During the year, the major investment of the Group in respect of its
first in-house TFT-LCD panel production line of more than HK$1.6
billion together with other peripheral facilities had significantly
increased the overall cost of production resulting in a big drop

in gross profit margin by approximately 2%. The continuous
appreciation of RMB and the adverse effect on other production
overheads due to the general inflation in the PRC were no doubt
additional reasons for the further drop in profit margins. However,
starting from the beginning of the year, the management had
successfully implemented a number of cost cutting and system
improvement measures to reduce or at least maintain the level of
other operating expenses to a minimum even on the condition of a
huge turnover growth to safeguard the bottom line performance.

Truly International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EHEEFWREITT @

With similar situation like last year, one of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries is entitled to obtain tax refunds from the Chinese Tax
Authority by the retention of a significant portion of its retained
profits in China as additional investments which had again resulted
in certain foreign exchange expenses booked in the profit and loss
account. Because of the hedging arrangements made during the
year and for the medium-term period, the negative impact of these
foreign currency exposures had been and will be reduced to a very
great extent.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into
two operating divisions — LCD products and electronic consumer
products. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD
products
Electronic consumer —  manufacture and distribution of

products electronic consumer products

HEFNFERAL  AEBEF —KFEH
MERRAZETERBEHEARRZE

BB EREE KD RE S
ﬁ%ﬁﬁl\&é‘ B BREHERRAF
RETHERAS - ARFARTHEEE
HER R ZFIERBRZEEFED
R A ERIEREIE

SEER

EXE

REEMS  AREEALEMARH -
BB TRREMRETHEER  AKHE
M EDBIERZBMETIEZNHERZE
% o

FEEBFWOT -

BREBRBEM — RERDHAS
BRURERE fh

— BERDHEETHE
= i

EFHEEM

< 1 CSTN production line
CSTN 4 E&Z

< 2 CSTN production line
CSTN 4 E&Z

< 3 CSTN production line
CSTN 4 E&Z

ENEEERAR - —TELFFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BEEESWETI @

Segment information about these businesses is presented below: IEXEB s HFEEHENNT :
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZZTLF+_A=+—HLEFE
Electronic
LCD products consumer

& R T e products Consolidated

Em SBTHEEM =a

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000

THER FExT TER

REVENUE Wz
External sales SN 34 6,362,402 130,992 6,493,394
REVENUE £

Segment result Pag e 814,674 829,118

Unallocated corporate income K5 fic 2 A FIHA 73,939
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 % it 2 A &l & A (19,468)
Share of loss of an associate B —XEtE QAR EE (445) (445)
Finance costs MH%EM (57.821)

Profit before tax % Bt Bl 55 ) 825,323
Income tax expense FriSfif 2 (123,294)

Profit for the year N 702,029

4

10 Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2007



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EIEERTWETI @

For the year ended 31 December 2006

BE-PEAE+-A=+—ALER

Electronic
LCD products consumer
& &R BT Y products  Consolidated
Em BTHEEE® e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
REVENUE Yz
External sales G 54 4,403,989 119,837 4,523,826
RESULT Ed
Segment result DEFEE 634,489 2,138 636,627
Unallocated corporate income k9 fic 2 A & U A 62,089
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 7 Bt 2 ‘A &l & F (11,433)
Share of loss of an associate B/ — K E & D A 1E — (334) (334)
Finance costs MBER (35,766)
Profit before tax R B¢ A g A 651,183
Income tax expense Frig B (119,137)
Profit for the year ANF R T 532,046

< 4 TFT factory building
TFTRR = K8

< 5 TFT production line
TFTHEESRR

ENEBEARAR - —ZBTRLFFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BEEEFNWETHT @

Geographical segments A E ]
The Group’s manufacturing operation is located in the PRC. The AREBFZEEXEEGNPE - 5E RTS

sales and marketing functions are located at all reportable segments  HEEKAIGAR TXME5 2 A E ©
as listed below.

The revenue of the Group, analysed by location of customers, is as REBZEFE ST Z WO T

follows:
Revenue by geographical segments
BEMESEE S 2
2007 2006
—ETLE =
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#x F# T
PRC s 5,162,994 3,620,501
South Korea 58 595,018 226,908
Japan SN 115,532 125,054
Hong Kong &5 178,636 212,317
Europe BM 282,110 206,404
Others H 159,104 132,642

6,493,394 4,523,826

12 Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2007



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEES R ETH @

Outlook

The newly installed TFT-LCD production line had undergone

an exceptionally fast and short learning curve by expanding its
production capacity by tenfold in less than 6-month time during
the second half year period. Thanks to the strong technical and
engineering supports to the development, implementation and
mass production of the TFT-LCD line as a result of our long-term
investment strategy in the related technology, we are expecting a
big jump in production yield to more than 90% during the first half
year of 2008. Together with the projected maximum productivity in
the very near future, the outputs of the highly cost effective TFT-
LCD panels will become our growth engine to penetrate into the
specialty display market.

Keeping a high cost consciousness and making decisive marketing
strategy are again the key elements of a success in the business
world. The expansion to the second phase TFT-LCD production
facilities by a more economic scale as previously announced and
expected to commence mass production in the third quarter of
2008 will become another great move in the Group’s history. By
the time our manufacturing base is equipped with these powerful
tools, our TFT-LCD in small size display products will be even more
competitive and the overall profit margins will be significantly
enhanced.

FEZENTFHIODEESRZ 2B EERE T
RMEEL T TEFIARANEANERA
ERERERT & XERAEEEIE
BRI R E R  TFELCDAEESRHD
- ZERANAEEESIBRANE
MEIEZE BMER-_ZTNF LY
FHERRERHARELEAZTI0%MN L - BEE
TFFLCDRE B ER & KERE - EERK
AR B TF-LCD AR #8 B A AN 52 B A
ERETHBRMENIERS|ZE -

EEELE  RESEAORAZHEE R
TR B B0 T 5 M AR BR TR T 2 B B
E o AEBEERFEHNEMBAEMEED
REETE ZBTFILCD A ER B EE -
B _ZEN\FE=FESHBAREE
E EEERATEBRERNIX —BEE
R EEEEMEBEZFRAREBR -
AEBER /N R SLCDE M E AR
N MEEBFBXHAERS -

< 6 TFT production line

TFT HE#R

< 7 COG IC Bonding division
COG IC #a45E0P

< 8 LCM assembly line

LCM A%AR

EFEERARAR T FFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EHEEF W R @

Despite the aforesaid advantages, the management has never
forgotten the associated side effects of these huge investments

including but not limited to the high depreciation and maintenance

charges on the machinery. More stringent controls over the
inventory level and the Group’s overall credit policy are being
executed to reduce the respective production cost and finance
expenses. With a positive outlook on the small size LCD display

market ahead in the medium term, we are confident of achieving

greater success in the years to come.

INVESTMENT, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to HK$1,636 million and properties under development amounting
to HK$229 million for the purpose of expanding its manufacturing

capacity in the China factory campus.

Total assets were increased by approximately 44% to HK$5,902

million which comprised HK$2,495 million of current assets,

HK$3,214 million of property, plant and equipment and HK$193

million of other long-term assets. Total liabilities were about

HK$2,870 million, of which HK$2,148 million were current liabilities
and HK$722 million were long term liabilities. The current ratio was

maintained at a healthy level of 1.2.

9 > TFT production line
TFT £ER

10 >Truly Group China Main Office Building
ERHER(FE) FZHAKE

Truly International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEES R ETH @

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Turnover for the year were increased by 44%. Net profit for the
year and earnings per share were increased by 32% and 30%
respectively.

As at 31 December 2007, the outstanding bank borrowings, net
of cash and bank balances, were about HK$833 million (2006: net
cash position of HK$244 million). These borrowings bear interest at
prevailing market rate and their maturity profiles are shown in the
notes to the financial statements.

The financial position of the Group is healthy and ready for future
capital expansion while keeping a sufficiently high level of cash and
bank balances (HK$554 million at 31 December 2007) together
with adequate unutilised banking facilities. The gearing ratio based
on interest bearing debts, net of cash and bank balances was
approximately 27%.

Capital expenditure of around HK$600 million for the next three
years in respect of acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
was authorized but not contracted for. Their expected sources of
funding will be principally from internal reserves.

10

MEBEERMBER

FER o BEREIEMNMY%  REELHFNEE
% Z F 5 Bl 3E hN32% K 30%

R-_ZBEEZLHE+-_F=+—8 KEE
BITEE(NRReMBRITEFT)N A
833,000,000 T(ZZEZERNFFRE A
244,000,000 L) - ZEE R Z FE IR
BHRTMBEEMERE - HERBERY
HMRMIAE -

REBEZHBRAEFER  ERAKEE
BERBZESRBAIEHK(R_TZ+
F+ = A =+ — H A554,000,0007%8 7T ) °
MER#mzmREARTERSE  BUEN
KERZERBERANT - EAARELRIRE
BEB(EIKRESRRBITER)FTEY
B27% °

AR=ZF BEHNEETZEARZH®
REBEYE  BERERE LEEER
BE®KRY FHESXRREEIEXRANR
ARREAE o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BB R ETH @

GENERAL

During the year, the Company issued a total of 4,448,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each under separate share option schemes
exercised at HK$2.196 (3,423,000 shares) and HK$11.6 (1,025,000
shares) per share respectively, for an aggregate consideration of
HK$19,406,908. The new shares rank pari passu with the existing
shares in all respects and the issued share capital of the Company
was accordingly increased to HK$47,274,453 at 31 December 2007.

The state of the Group’s current order books is very good.

Except for investments in subsidiaries, an associate and the long
term investment in a Japanese corporation, neither the Group nor
the Company had held any other material investments during the
year.

Additions to fixed assets mainly in properties under development
and plant and machinery were approximately HK$2,012 million.
There were no material disposals of fixed assets during the year. As
at 31 December 2007, the Group had no pledge or mortgage on its
fixed assets.

More than 10,000 workers and staff are currently employed in our
Shan Wei factory in China and around 90 personnel in the Group’s
Hong Kong office.

11 >TFT production line
TFT £EL

12 >TFT production line
TFT £EL

13 > CSTN production line
CSTN A ELR

Truly International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEES R ETH @

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the balance sheet
date and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates will be hedged,

if any.

DIVIDENDS

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2007 of 30 HK cents per share expected
to be payable on 28 May 2008 (2006: 25 HK cents) which, together
with the interim dividend of 25 HK cents per share (2006: 23 HK
cents) paid in October 2007, makes a total dividend for the year of

55 HK cents per share (2006: 48 HK cents).

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 37%.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for less than
30% of the total sales and purchases of the Group respectively.

As at 31 December 2007, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

12
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior

management of the Group are set out as follows:

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven, aged 55, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and has
over 31 years of experience in the electronics industry. He is primarily

responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall strategic

planning and business development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 49, is an Executive Director of
the Company and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group’s operations in respect of internal controls
and risk management, investors’ relationship and external affairs. He

joined the Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, James, aged 52, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s LCD
products and other semiconductor components. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he had been the sales managers of a number of

electronics companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 44, is the Head of the Group’s LCD Production

Division and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li

graduated from the Jilin University of Technology and Engineering
Management in 1987 and joined the group in 1989. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked in a multinational motor car manufacturer in

Guangzhou City, the PRC for almost two years.

14
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 50, is an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Group’s Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is members of

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a council
member of the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants.
Mr. Chung has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management and has been the independent Non-executive Director,
management consultant and Company Secretary of a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 49, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He is the holder of a Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip is
a member of the Institute of Financial Planner of Hong Kong and is
the Senior Financial Advisor of a professional insurance company in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 59, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He has experience in textile industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Mr. Ng Sui Wa, Thomas, aged 45, is the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer and the Finance Director of Truly Semiconductors Limited.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong and is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Ng joined the Group in 1996 and has over 20 years of experiences
for working in an international accounting firm and in the
commercial and industrial sectors.

By Order of the Board
Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2008

16> LCD finished product QC division
LCDEK mE 12D
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Directors’ Report
EEEHREHSE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of liquid crystal display products and electronic consumer products

including calculators, electric toothbrush and electronic components.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 34.

An interim dividend of 25 HK cents per share, amounting to
HK$117,985,000, was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend

of 30 HK cents per share to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members on 9 May 2008,
amounting to HK$141,823,000, and the retention of the remaining
profit of HK$442,221,000 for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery and
properties under development amounting to HK$1,636,000,000
and HK$229,000,000 respectively for the purpose of expanding its
manufacturing capacity in Shan Wei City, Guangdong Province in
the People’s Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHEE @

SHARE CAPITAL Bz A&

Details of movements during the year in the issued share capital of RRRZEETRANFEAZEEHFEH
the Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial RER G BB MmMR M T 52818 o

statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY KRRz REE

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholdersas R =ZZ+F+-H=+—H AR FA
at 31 December 2007 were as follows: DERTRREZHEHEDT :

2007 2006

—ETLH ZEEXRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Share premium fi& 1 5 (8 319,630 300,668
Special reserve 5 Bl (5 5 17,409 17,409
Retained earnings IREE % 7 21,257 21,294

358,296 339,371

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium  RIEF S B & 2 BRAES - AR FLz K7

of the Company is available for distributions or paying dividends i B A 40K R L AR A B A2 XA SR A B2 1R ST
to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or () P BR A 1 90 TR 32 A B, - R R B A
Articles of Association and provided that immediate following the HoERR MR ER - ARRBARAE

distribution or paying dividend the Company is able to pay its debts 5 7% #8712 7 32 { 2 #i & 18 -
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference ARAZ B IENARRERER
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the fEARLZ RN ERZERKEARZHE

Company's subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares of B & & R [ % (8 52 K 2 7] 5L W8 T #17 2
these companies were acquired by the Company, and the nominal BinEEmERZ =58 -
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHEE @

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Wong Pong Chun, James
Cheung Tat Sang, James
Li Jian Hua

Independent non-executive directors:
Chung Kam Kwong

Heung Kai Sing

Ip Cho Ting, Spencer

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Lam Wai Wah, Steven, Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and
Wong Pong Chun, James retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHEE @

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2007, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

Long positions
(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

EFEZHROERBERRMER

RIBARRRERE S M EGD F352 1%
iR 2B MAE - HRBE(LT AR
EFETEFXINBEETR)AMNEAR
RAIRBEMERZMERRAR  R-F
EAF+ZRA=+—H BFREBEA
WA 2 AR A M E AR E 2 By R AR
Pyt T

wAa
(@) ARRABREEIBTZEER

Percentage of

Name of director

EEgS

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Mg

Wong Pong Chun, James
|=HIE

Cheung Tat Sang, James
RELE

Li Jian Hua
EE o

Truly International Holdings Limited

Capacity
g5

Beneficial owner
EnlEEA
Held by spouse (note 1)

mEGBEE (ME1)

Beneficial owner
BE=mEEA
Held by spouse (note 2)

mEBFE (ME2)

Beneficial owner
BB A

Beneficial owner
BEnlERE A

Annual Report 2007

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
shares held of the Company
iz B #iT mEARZE
TEBRHE BIOTREESWK
207,072,000 43.80
12,860,000 2.72
219,932,000 46.52
6,750,000 1.43
100,000 0.02
6,850,000 1.45
1,554,000 0.33
1,146,000 0.24



Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHEE @

(b) Share options

Name of director Capacity
EERE g5

Lam Wai Wah, Steven Beneficial owner
MIEZE EmBEAA
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner
= HIE EmiA A
Cheung Tat Sang, James Beneficial owner
REL BEmEAA

Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner
TR EmBEAA

Held by spouse (note 3)
miE@EE (ME3)

Notes:

1. Lam Wai Wah, Steven is deemed to be interested in 12,860,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by
his spouse, Chung King Yee, Cecilia.

2. Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 100,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by
his spouse, Lai Ching Mui, Stella.

3. Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 share options of the
Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo Yu
Yan.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2007.

(b) HERLHE

Number of
Number of underlying
options held shares

sz BIRESE HEARMEE

8,900,000 8,900,000
9,300,000 9,300,000
4,150,000 4,150,000
4,400,000 4,400,000
26,750,000 26,750,000

MaE

1. M E ZE AR A % 512,860,000 A% B H
EERAEaRE 2 ARBT B
s o

2. = A& AR A ¥ 5 100,000 i B H B2
BREEEEA 2 ADR L BRE
= e

3. = FE AR B 5 4,400,00017 3 E A
BB ERERHER 2 AR A ERER

= °

BREXHEBEEN R_EBLF+ A
ZST-B ZESHEBBEAMERAFA
AR EAT A AR R A B 2 AT AT B M AR R
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:

BRE

ERARRBREFEZHFBINGAY
R AMEE33E -

TR AR 7 2 B R A G 2 2

Number of Number of
options options
outstanding at Exercised outstanding at
beginning of year during end of year
Option type WA 470 i K AT year R EK I KRITHE
BRREER BREHEA FRITRE BREHE
Category 1: Directors
E—  BE
Lam Wai Wah, Steven 2001 — — —
WEE
Wong Pong Chun, James 2001 — — —
= HE 2003 4,400,000 — 4,400,000
2006 4,500,000 — 4,500,000
Cheung Tat Sang, James 2001 2,700,000 (2,300,000) 400,000
oK A& 2003 4,400,000 — 4,400,000
2006 4,500,000 — 4,500,000
Li Jian Hua (Note) 2003 8,800,000 (250,000) 8,550,000
FEE (M)
29,300,000 (2,550,000) 26,750,000

Note: Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 2003 share options, being fieE - ZEREWSR B F4400,0000 A EEBH T
the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan. HEREAZ _TT=FBREER -
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Category 2: Substantial shareholders

Other than the share options held by Lam Wai Wah, Steven as
disclosed above, no share option has been granted to other
substantial shareholders.

Number of

options

outstanding at

beginning of year

Option type WRER & KRITE

BREER BhRiEwe

Category 3: Employees 2001 1,263,000
F=8 : EB 2003 26,400,000
2006 4,500,000

32,163,000

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company

to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

BTE I ETERRE
R EX PR EmMEERSA 2 BREN
ARBHERAEMEIERRE THBRE -

Number of

options

Exercised outstanding at
during end of year
year  REHREKRITE
FENITHE BREHE
(1,123,000) 140,000
(775,000) 25,625,000
— 4,500,000
(1,898,000) 30,265,000

BERMWBESZZH

B Ll 4% R 2 FERCHERT 819D - R R E
EAMEARNFALES T EMLH -
BHEARRZEZNEBEBARARE
MEMEABER 2RO REFTMESF

%o

ENEEERAR - —TELFFR
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TERRE
As at 31 December 2007, the register of substantial shareholders B EXEBERMMBEEER ZERI
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the BEARQGERE S LB R E3361K

Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the interests FTRTFZ EEZERFTZLMAEKE - BE=
disclosed above in respect of Lam Wai Wah, Steven, the following ZE+F+_A=+—H " THREDM
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the EARRNAERARBZBEEITRATHEE

issued share capital of the Company. ZBEMER -
Long positions A
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company APNFEBREEIBTZEER

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

shares held Company

Name of shareholder Capacity iz e T EAAFAZE

BEER g4 LT@EBEE BITRAESL

%

Chan Kin Sun (note) Beneficial owner 28,900,000 6.11
PREF (M) EmEE A

Held by spouse 9,856,000 2.08
HEERFE

38,756,000 8.19

Chan Lai Lan Beneficial owner 25,896,000 5.48
PR BB BE EmEAA

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are deemed to be e - REFTRERBOHEARRAEEERRA
interested in 38,756,000 shares of the Company. 38,756,000 A% A% {7 ## = ©

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified 5
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share A

+— B - ARRWARERE M E AR
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2007. n

EXFREEEN BE_TELF+
FEBITRAZEBRGIRAE -
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

MODEL CODE

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company was not in the year
under review in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code") for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting matters and internal
controls. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2007 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee which
comprises all the three independent non-executive directors namely
Mr. Chung Kam Kwong (being the Chairman), Mr. Ip Cho Ting,

Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James,

an executive director, as members. They meet at least four times a
year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEES

The Company has a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination
Committee respectively which were established in accordance with
the relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees are
chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-executive
director and comprise three other members, namely Mr. Ip Cho
Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, being independent non-
executive directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an executive
director of the Company.

Truly International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHEE @

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in

the Code on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2007, except

for a major deviation as below:

° Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive are not separated and are performed by
the same individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven. The Board
will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of Company
and believes that this structure will enable us to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2007.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$5,478,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam Wai Wah, Steven

CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 27 March 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BWILIZHEHRES

Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 112,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2007, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Truly International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIZHERES @

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms

of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

Al mz

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

2007
ZEFLHE
HK$'000
F#ExT

NOTES
B =E

Revenue g 4
Cost of sales & R AR
Gross profit E5
Other income E A A 6
Administrative expenses 1T EH
Distribution and selling costs %> 84 &% 4 & B X
Share of loss of an associate B —REENREE
Finance costs B%ER 7
Profit before tax B 1 B s A
Income tax expense Fris i it 8
Profit for the year NFE 5 A 9
DIVIDENDS fi& 8 12
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAF 13
Basic BN
Diluted i

Truly International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2007

6,493,394
(5.387,613)

1,105,781
85,669
(168,753)
(139,108)
(445)
(57,821)

825,323
(123,294)

702,029

HK$1.49% Tt

2006
—TBEX

— ==

HK$'000
TAET

4,523,826
(3,623,940)

899,886
79,125

651,183
(119,137)

532,046

222,266

HK$1.1578 7T




Consolidated Balance Sheet

GRBEERRER

At 31 December 2007
R=—ZZTtF+=-A=+—8H

2007
—EFLHE
HK$'000
T#ET

NOTES
B 5

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #12% « BE K& & 14
Prepaid lease payments ENEERE 15
Intangible assets mEEE 16
Goodwill [EES
Interest in an associate —REERFI 2 EE 17
Available-for-sale investments ] it £ £ 18 & 18
Deferred tax assets RETIEE E 27
Deposits paid for acquisition of Ui i ¥ 2 -

property, plant and BN d

equipment BEffE®
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories FE 19
Prepaid lease payments TE T &R 15
Loans receivable [;”&Eiﬁ 20
Trade and other receivables IEH&EEIEZiiiﬁﬂﬁgﬂﬁéhfa 21
Amount due from an associate & I — & B & A @ 31 18 22
Tax recoverable A Y = B I8
Derivative financial instruments $T4 &/t T & 23
Bank balances and cash BITHEGFRAS 24

3,214,313
119,908
22,121
413

391
10,500
800

3,407,594

808,007
3,245
53,442
1,030,674
17,590
27,016
554,476

2,494,450

EMERARAR]

2006
ZEERF
HK$'000
FHET

1,403,720
99,089
13,355

413
838
10,500
836

427,238

1,955,989

519,078
2,598

586,704
352
11,592

1,018,228

2,138,552

—TTLETR

35



Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
GeBEERER @

At 31 December 2007
RZZTtF+=-A=+—8H

2007 2006
_EFEFLHE ZEER
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M 3 T#ET FAET
CURRENT LIABILITIES BB &

Trade and other payables JE T BR I8 K2 B th JE 5 5K IE 25 1,359,790 863,786
Tax liabilities MIBE® 76,459 51,308
Derivative financial instruments 74 & ft T & 23 12,074 -

Bank and other borrowings, RITRHEMEE -
unsecured E 26 698,597 566,696

653
2,147,573 1,481,790
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 346,877 656,762

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & ER I aE
LIABILITIES 3,754,471 2,612,751

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBBEE

Bank and other borrowings, RITREMEER
unsecured /%\ﬂjﬁﬂa 26 688,059 207,844

Deferred tax liabilities EERRIBET 27 34,081 38,905

722,140 246,749

Bank overdrafts, unsecured BT EIEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES A& R K et 4
Share capital [N 28 47,274 46,830
Share premium and reserves % {7 i 18 & (& 2,985,057 2,319,172
The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 112 were BN FMEEFINAEZRAVBEREE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 R-_TEENFZA-_+LtAEEELHE
March 2008 and are signed on its behalf by: REENE  HBEATALTRRES
Lam Wai Wah, Steven Wong Pong Chun, James
iR EE EE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2F EF

Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2007



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SEHABRE

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

Share Capital

Share Share  option  Special redemption Exchange Other  Retained

capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  profits Total
B EXEE

Rx RbER &6 BARE  §E MERG LURE REEN 0 &R
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HK§'000
Thr TEn T AR TEn Thr TEn  TEnT  TER

(note a) (note b)
(Mtia) (k)
At 1 January 2006 RIZERE
-A-H 45816 279,431 - 990 82 26,109 125543 1,460,074 1,938,045
Exchange differences 5G4
arising on translation £ BFTEE 25
of foreign operations ~ EZE
and total income ERBRAR
directly recognised HEERZ
in equity KABE - - - - - 8596 - - 8596
Profit for the year TEEEF - - - - - - - 3206 53204
Total recognised income AR [E E #7
for the year WAL - - - - - 85926 - 532046 617972
Shares issued at premium 123 B %17 Rk (7 1014 21237 - - - - - - 25
Recognition of equity - R RRELE
settled share R AER
based payments YNZFE - - 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
Transfer B - - - - - - 94187 (94,187) -
Dividends paid EfRE - - - - - - - (222,266)  (222,266)
At31December 2006 H=EERF
T-A=+-H 46,830 300,668 10,000 990 82 12035 219,730 1,675,667 2,366,002
Bchange differences B EFIMIE
arising on translation £ BFTEE 25
of foreign operations 2% &k
and total income ERBRAR
directly recognised EERR
in equity [Nt - - - - - 180,237 - - 180,237
Profit for the year TEEEF - - - - - - - 702029 702,029
Total recognised income ~ AEER
for the year BAMNEE - - - - - 180,237 - 702029 882,266
Shares issued at premium 23 E %17 Rk (7 444 18,962 - - - - - - 19406
Transfer g% - - - - - - 93 91319 N
Dividends paid BRkE - - - - - - - B3 23538
At31December 2007 RZFE+E
+-A=1+-8 47274 319,630 10,000 990 82 292272 311,048 2,051,035 3,032,331

ENEREERAR - —ZETLFFR 37
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

GEEREEHR @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

Notes:

(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisitions.

(b) Other reserves comprises statutory surplus reserve and enterprise expansion
reserve of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China other
than Hong Kong (the “PRC"). According to the Articles of Association of the
PRC subsidiaries, a percentage of net profit as reported in the PRC statutory
accounts should be transferred to statutory surplus reserve and enterprise
expansion reserve determined at the discretion of the board of directors of these
companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to set off accumulated
loss whilst the enterprise expansion reserve can be used for expansion of
production facilities or increase in registered capital.

Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2007
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before tax B B A 825,323 651,183
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income FEBA (12,644) (20,546)
Share-based payment expenses LARR 9 A EE 2 M 1 - 10,000
Change in fair value on derivative TTEEMIAZ
financial instruments NEEED (14,942) -
Amortisation of development B R S 8
expenditure 10,625 10,625
Amortisation of trademarks 7 122 3 210 262
Allowance for bad debts EREE 7,160 3,583
Depreciation and amortisation of W BE K
property, plant and equipment RAEITE N 263,398 173,135
Release of prepaid lease payments  fi# [ 78 < 70 & 718 3,245 2,598
Loss on disposal/write-off of e M E
property, plant and equipment R N 5% 1 2 B 18 1,563 471
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HEBENEE
payments HIE W = (2,191)
Release of government grants o2 AR TR 70 B (5,456) (629)
Finance costs Eﬂ%%ﬁﬁ 57,821 35,766
Share of loss of an associate FE/E —REE &N T8 445 334
Operating cash flows before Rt EBEEEHA
movements in working capital ZIREHERE 1,136,748 864,591
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (Emn) @ (214,932) 53,465
(Increase) decrease in trade and JE Uk BR T8 & H b E U ZR 8
other receivables (3gm) b (400,327) 193,758
Increase (decrease) in trade and J& 1~ BR T8 N2 H A fiE A~
other payables FIEEM R 488,893 (57,196)
Effect of realignment of foreign PREE 2 ZE
exchange rate 4,122
Cash generated from operations CEEERINZIRE 1,010,382 1,058,740
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid E HEENEBR (48,190) (72,338)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMEN (64,016) (103,377)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBRELZ
ACTIVITIES BeHR 898,176 883,025
EFIER AR AR —TTLFEFR
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
EEHERER @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

2007

=
HK$'000
FHET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEHE

Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BERRKRE
equipment

Advancement of loans BB

Addition of prepaid lease payments & 1~ Fi & 7k I8 1 j

Acquisition of intangible assets W Em R EE

Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEmZE ~ BE MR E
property, plant and equipment PASRNE:&

Interest received 2 FE

Amount repaid from an associate — B i NEEIE IE

Purchase of available-for-sale iR = ] e Hj EKE
investments

Proceeds from disposals of prepaid £ & 1< TH B3R
lease payments B 15 513

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING WA ZETEFE R
ACTIVITIES 2R FH

FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE

Repayment of bank and other BERTEREMEE
borrowings

Dividend paid ERRE

Interest paid on bank and other BfHER1T R HE A E NS
borrowings

New bank and other borrowings raised %7 i& $8 17 & £ fh & &

Proceeds from issue of shares BTG TS RIE

NET CASH FROM FINANCING MESTHELE RS FE
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH 4 KIH£ % E1EH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT F#lzHB 4 MRS E£EEH
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREF w8
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FX& B4 KRS =EEER -
END OF THE YEAR, represented by 15

Bank balances and cash WRITHEGFE RS

Bank overdrafts RITEX

Truly International Holdings Limited

(RL) BIFER
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(1,584,821)
(53,442)
(18,213)
(19,601)

(39,148)
12,644
352

(1,702,229)

(2,250,203)
(235,343)

(57.821)
2,862,319
19,406

338,358

(465,695)

1,018,228

554,476
(%))

2006
—EETRF
HK$'000
FHT

(460,194)

(7,66;)
(4,840)

(366,646)
20,546
95
(10,500)

7,050

(822,156)

(138,486)
(222,266)

(35,766)
481,530
22,251

107,263
168,132
848,436

1,660

1,018,228

1,018,228

1,018,228




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company. The Company is a public limited company with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the section headed “General Information” to the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is United State dollar.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars which is different from the functional currency
of the Company, as the directors of the Company consider
that Hong Kong dollars is the most appropriate presentation
currency in view of its place of listing.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display (“LCD") products
and electronic consumer products including calculators and
other electronic components.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new standard, amendment and interpretations
("new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(FRIC) — Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) = Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded

—MREIR

AATNHERERENSHEA
AEEMRLA—BEREAA -
ARAA-BARABRAT  HR
REBEBARSHARA R (B
BT 1) £ o AR R B R
TEAEMB T AN ER—RE
B — G E -

ARBZNEEER/RET - AR A
EEKERAE LTI RREE
RRBEGZZVNEYR  BHEEWHK
BRABEZ2I(BRRARRZI
EEE) -

ARADREERAT - LI EA
AZEBEBANBERMERSE
A RARBTE)ERRE
FHAER  0F HEBRAME
FEL -

F

I
i 2

& H R
&

%ﬁ%ﬂ%%%
) I\I

S

AERER  AEBEEHERERAATH
BEERMAG([BERAMA
) EM T ER - BFTRRE
(IFHFTBRBYBREEN])  HF
EAPR _ZETLFEF-A—-RBHN
RSB BHFEEER -

FEBERE 1R BARBE
(f&37)

TRVBRERNETR 2RI HE

8 (BARMBRE REZBGHERF95
ZEZES) [BEBREE 2T B
BEETH BEIRBETE

R (ERMBRERE FEMBHRELES
ZAg)REFT F2REE

R (BERyMBHRERE WNETEIA
ZEg)REFN BT

Derivatives B (ERTBRERE PHEUBRERAE
HK(IFRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and ZER)REF 0%
Impairment

EMERARAR]

“ETLEFR

41



42

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain
information presented in prior year under the requirements

of HKAS 32 has been removed and the relevant comparative
information based on the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment)
and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first time in the
current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards or interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements!

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs!

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations!

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?2

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments!

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share
Transactions3

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements*

HK(FRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmess

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

[N SR N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these standards or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The principal
accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All inter-company transactions and balances within the Group
have been eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations
of another entity for which the agreement date is before 1
January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of
acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions, the
Group has discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005
onwards, and such goodwiill is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating
unit to which the goodwiill relates may be impaired (see the
accounting policy below).

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets
and operations of another entity is presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising

from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on

the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in

the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007

Bn=E

SEPLEToAST-ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associates),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including building held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or

for administrative purposes other than properties under
development, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment, other than buildings and properties under
development, over their estimated useful lives, and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value using the
reducing balance method.

Buildings are depreciated over their useful lives, where shorter,
in the terms of respective leases, using the straight-line
method.

Buildings in the course of development for production

are carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property within property, plant and equipment, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended uses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item
is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including technical know-how acquired and
the cost incurred in the registration of trademarks with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life, and carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the
asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the
extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,

if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.

FTEEFHHR (&)

5h s
RESENEBEEEZHBRE
B U XN ER AN ZEE
M) FrET 2R B TINETNEEE
BIZEXEEZIEZREBERRE L
E¥)RXFAPZHITEEALR -
REEER > UINEIIEZERIA
BOREEAZRITERENG
BN ESLKATEZIER
ERRITTEMNBE -

EREREENEKEEREME
EZEREZERIRELZHHER

B e

REREAFMBRRME - A5 E
ZBIMEEREBEERABRAE
BRAZRTEXMESARAZE
BEBAETL)  MEFXH 2K
AR X IR AREE 2 F 19 & i
FoHERPANETBERIKRIN
RZBEAT  AIRBXZBEHZHE
TEX -MELZERZR(WEA)
TR /R 2B (E X R
) - ZBEEREZBEDNHEBIMNE
BERBC HANERELS -

EERAE

BT 5 B AR AR 19 R R R K T A B
BRA  URELBBHAGS K
BER -

ENEREERAR - —ZETLFFR

49



50

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

Truly International Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants
related to depreciable assets are presented as deferred income
and are released to income over the useful lives of the assets.
Grants related to expense items are recognised in the same
period as those expenses are charged in the consolidated
income statement and are reported separately as other
income.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBFRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwiill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the

asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
consolidated income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

Truly International Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held
for trading. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value, with the changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including loans receivable, trade and other receivables,
amount due from an associate and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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Truly International Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet
date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on

a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for

a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payment, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by

the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivables is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL")
Financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise financial liabilities
held for trading. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with the changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

- Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables
and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

- Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Truly International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
GEMBFRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
GEMFREME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

Truly International Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference

to the fair value of share options granted on or after 1
January 2005 is recognised as an expense in full at grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in

the consolidated income statement in respect of the value

of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or
are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

4. REVENUE

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and receivable
on the sale of goods during the year, net of sales tax, trade
discounts and returns, and is analysed as follows:

Y gk P AERR o

4. W=

2007
—EFLHE
HK$'000
FHT

Sales of LCD products
Sales of electronic consumer
products

6,362,402

130,992

6,493,394
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W2z FBEMGHER  RAFTER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ZREMBHREMEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 5. ¥BRIESE
SEGMENTS
Business segments EX R
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised REEBAEMNMSE  AEEBANLE
into two operating divisions — LCD products and electronic MAEH - BRREETRERERE
consumer products. These divisions are the basis on which the FHEBER FAEBEULEESHE
Group reports its primary segment information. RERAFEDHEH ZEE -
Principal activities are as follows: FEEBWT :
LCD products - manufacture and distribution of R — BB SRS
LCD products MIRER @ RETIETS
Em
Electronic consumer - manufacture and distribution of EFHEBED — HEROWMSTF
products electronic consumer products WEE S
Segment information about these businesses is presented EEE S HSBEERZH0T
below:
For the year ended 31 December 2007 BzEz_ZEFEtLtHE+=-_B=+—
HiEFE
LCD Electronic
products consumer
& R products Consolidated
BETHREMm BEFHEEM o=y
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TF#&ET TFi#& T
REVENUE i &=
External sales ! 6,362,402 130,992 6,493,394
RESULT S
Segment result DHEE 814,674 829,118
Unallocated corporate income & % Bt 2 A &l Ug A 73,939
Unallocated corporate expenses = % it 2 A &l & /A (19,468)
Share of loss of an associate & — B & 2 75 18 (445)
Finance costs BisE A (57,821)

Profit before tax % B B 58 825,323
Income tax expense Fr{S 7 32 i (123,294)
Profit for the year N E i 702,029
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL

SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (continued)

As at 31 December 2007
BALANCE SHEET

5. ¥ RMESE &)

EX g NE )
R-EFELFE+-A=+—H
HEAMSR

Electronic

LCD consumer

products products
% B2 EFi4E Consolidated
B 7R 2 2 ZEm e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET T#ET

4,636,398 601,431 5,237,829
= 391 391
663,824

5,902,044

1,315,594 44,196 1,359,790
1,509,923

2,869,713

Hitt &R

Electronic

LCD consumer

products products
& m i EFHE Consolidated
B 7R B A #Em RE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TER T#ET

ASSETS BE

Segment assets NEEE

Interest in an associate —REENE 2 Em

Unallocated corporate assets KD 2 RAAIEE

Consolidated total assets mEBAEME

LIABILITIES =8

Segment liabilities DEEE

Unallocated corporate liabilities &7 B 2 A& & &

Consolidated total liabilities 434 B &4 %

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions EME AR

Depreciation and amortisation  # & K # §

Loss on disposal/write-off of & /i #51 %
property, plant and BB REE
equipment 2 &8

Allowance for bad debts EIREE

1,965,025 66,635 2,031,660
239,698 34,535 274,233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
GEMFREME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 5. ¥EBRMEDE &)
SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segments (continued) E¥B5E )
For the year ended 31 December 2006 BE_EERE+A=1+—
HIEEE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
R am e FFHE  Consolidated
BTRREM E e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
REVENUE I &=
External sales SN 5 4,403,989 119,837 4,523,826
RESULT ES
Segment result DEEE 634,489 2,138 636,627
Unallocated corporate income k5 B2 2 7lHA 62,089
Unallocated corporate ROBZ2AEEMR
expenses (11,433)
Share of loss of an associate &y — & B &
NRAZ KB - (334) (334)
Finance costs B E A (35,766)
Profit before tax % B3 B 5 7 651,183
Income tax expense Fr{S # &2 i (119,137)
Profit for the year N E s 532,046
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
GEMBFRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+F+_A=+—HLEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 5. XBRMESE#)
SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segments (continued) EBoE )
As at 31 December 2006 R_EBEERNE+-_A=+—H
BALANCE SHEET EEEEE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
R f e EFFHE  Consolidated
BHTRREM E e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 2,760,259 291,523 3,051,782
Interest in an associate — XN NE 2R - 838 838
Amount due from an associate J& g — 5 B 48 A B I8 - 352 352
Unallocated corporate assets RO 7 AFIEE 1,041,569
Consolidated total assets REEERTE 4,094,541
LIABILITIES & &
Segment liabilities DEEE 825,656 38,132 863,788
Unallocated corporate liabilities x5 B 2 A= & & 864,751
Consolidated total liabilities A aBEREsE 1,728,539
OTHER INFORMATION HihE#
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
B R TFHE  Consolidated
N E o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET FHET
Capital additions 18 40 & 2N 404,918 60,116 465,034
Depreciation and amortisation TE NLEH 149,179 34,843 184,022
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE OB IE
property, plant and equipment & & &R & 2 E 18 28 443 471
Allowance for bad debts R AR 3,256 327 3,583
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ZEMBREMEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 5. ¥BRMEDE #)
SEGMENTS (continued)
Geographical segments ith [ 57 38
The Group’s manufacturing operation is located in the PRC. REE s BEXEBURPE - HE
The sales and marketing functions are located at all reportable R isHEEEBRGR T XF2 3
segments as listed below. AR -
The revenue of the Group, analysed by location of customers, rEEREPEMRSBESTZ
is as follows: e
Revenue by
geographical segments
EiESEE S W H
2007 2006
“ETLEE —ERTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F# T FET
PRC s 5,162,994 3,620,501
South Korea B 595,018 226,908
Japan H 7 115,532 125,054
Hong Kong B 178,636 212,317
Europe (O 282,110 206,404

Others Eih 159,104 132,642

6,493,394 4,523,826
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+F+_A=+—HLEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 5. ¥ RMEDE #)
SEGMENTS (continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) EnEw)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment UTREEEMEME ST 2D
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and AEREHBENUNLRFEZDE BE
intangible assets, analysed by the geographical area in which BEARBEEAED

the assets are located:

Carrying
amount of

segment assets

NEEEREE
2007 2006
—TTLF RN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#Ex FET
PRC H 4,495,128 2,103,679
Hong Kong 30 697,621 910,902
Europe B 87 2,507

Others HAth 44,993 34,694

5,237,829 3,051,782

Additions to
property, plant
and equipment

and intangible assets
ME - BERRE

UEREEEZRE
2007 2006
TEFEE e
HK$'000 HK$:000
TER TET
1,982,658 458,629
49,002 6,368
- 17
- 20

2,031,660 465,034

ENBEBRERAR - —ZETLFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ZEMBREMEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HilgA
2007 2006
—EFtHE ZEEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FET
Other income includes: g NDEC
Exchange gains, net [E 5 W B 5 4,863
Fair value changes on derivative THEERMIAY
financial instruments NEEEE) -
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease & B E KB U
payments 2,191
Government grants AT 2= 8l 629
Interest income ) BURA 20,546
Rental income el A 2,694
Tax refund on reinvestment (note) B IKE 2 HAE K (M) 38,849

Note: Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the immediate Misk : BRIBEFRZBBEERREER  REMERQA

holding company of the PRC subsidiaries, {Z 7 2 3 8 R A 7, is CHEZERARGEANLEEERADAERIER
entitled for the tax refund on the reinvestment on its profit. The tax BEEHMREAZHUBRAR - NEEAERBEBZA
approval was obtained from the relevant tax bureau before the year end ERGHBRE R BBEL -
dates.
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
2007 2006
—TFTLE —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FET
Interest on bank and other RATH B R E A AR
borrowings wholly repayable hFEANEHEEZ
within five years IRITER 35,766
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
GEMBFRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

8.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

8. FTHEH XU

Current tax: RNEARIA
Hong Kong BB
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EPTET
Other jurisdictions Efh AR

EFE GBREERE)

(Over)underprovision in

prior years: BEIR
Hong Kong &
Deferred tax (note 27) EIER A (M1 5E27)
Income tax expense for the year KEFEME/H L

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%)
of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Income tax arising in PRC and other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
one of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, 15 Fl ¥ & g2 5 [ A
al, is classified as advance technology entity, which entitled
to a 50% relief from PRC enterprise income tax of 24% and
an exemption of 3% local tax for the following three years
starting from 2006.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63
of the President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the
New Law. The New Law and Implementation Regulations will
change the statutory tax rate to 25%, from 1 January 2008.

2007 2006
XSt —TTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#xT FHET

16,300 35,949

113,055 82,361

110 360

129,465 118,670

(1,383) 133

(4,788) 334

EAENNEGHOREFRZMGEE
B H MIEITIS%( = BB N FE
17.5%) 2 T EFHE o

KRB REMRDEERMAELE 2P
BRIOIREEBEFAERER M

EEHH -

REBEFEBBEERERD - AR A
Hefh—x P BB RIS
ERARBNDERBARMERE - #®
MEERBE_ZETERFE=FFF
FESERSH(RERB24%) 2
50% RRUA M3% M E M TR R

RZBELF=A+XA  BEHD
FARAMBERESF35  +
B AR R B PR 1S BOA ([ 3R
ED)  RZEBETELF+-ARA
BB TS B R R BOACE B IR
) - REBFHBERECERBIRD]) -

“EENFE-A-BR EEM
KR FER25% °

ENEBRAR AR TR FER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8. FEHZWH (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit AERFzRESXHEGERERZ
before tax per the consolidated income statement as follows: BRTEAR N < SRR T ¢
2007 2006
—_EFtE —ZEEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Profit before tax B 5% Al A 825,323 651,183
Tax at applicable income tax rate i F AR 15 8 B K £26.7%
of 26.7% (2006: 25.0%) (ZZTZREFE :250%) 220,768 162,732
Tax effect of share of profits of FEAE — A B & R Bl A
an associate BT E 78 58
Tax effect of expenses not NI 2 B &
deductible for tax purpose 21,107 12,937
Tax effect of income not taxable BAENRBA 2B G TR
for tax purpose (9,040) (3,401)
(Over) underprovision in respect of @ F[Z (FBEEEE)
prior years BHETR (1,383) 133
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERM BB
recognised 2R B 1,069 1,913
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses @h 3 A 1E oK #E SR TR 15 /5 18
previously not recognised BB E (75)
Tax effect of utilisation of ) A DA R TR
deductible temporary differences 2~ B] #1182 5 2= 28
previously not recognised 2GR E (283)
Effect of tax concession granted to /1 B [ff /B X 7)1 %
a PRC subsidiary RMEERZVE (109,369) (55,306)
Others Hity 64 429
Income tax expense for the year REEHRBEXH 119,137

Note

The average income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2007

M BE—TTLF+_A=T-BUEFEZTF

B RS TR R AR B R R R AR A A
RENBRRER TR BDERZEE 2 NER

=

represents the weighted tax rate of the operations in different
jurisdications on the basis of the relevant amounts of profits before
taxation and the relevant tax rate for the year.
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REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

For the years of assessment from 1999/2000 to 2003/04,
the Inland Revenue Department ("IRD") issued protective
profits tax assessments, in aggregate, of approximately
HK$55,000,000 against a wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Company. The Group lodged objections with the IRD
against the protective assessments. The IRD agreed to hold
over the tax claimed completely subject to the subsidiary in
question purchasing tax reserve certificates for those years of
assessment. These tax reserve certificates were purchased by
the relevant subsidiary subsequent to the balance sheet date.

The directors of the Company believe that no profits tax is
payable by the Group in respect of the concerned subsidiary
and no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax in respect of the
protective assessments is necessary.

FEH W @)

BEMREREAEEZEWE A
RIBECREEMESHIR  ER
1999 2000 Z 2003 04 £ £ i 75 &F
% 2 #5849 /55,000,000 78 7T © AN &
BELmiisRiRd REZREMN
IR E RMERBREY &AM
MEEBR - EER2MBAGA
MZEFECIZEERNS - A
BAHBARENEERRBERZS
B FH o

ARRMEERR AEEBHNE
AREILEENAEH - TEEE
MREEMSHIEMEBIELE
BRSBTS -

ENEREERAR - —ZETLFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE-TTLF+-A=+—RALFE

9.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

9. AEEEF

Profit for the year has been arrived

at after charging:

Allowance for doubtful debts
Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories

Depreciation and amortisation on:

Property, plant and equipment

Development expenditure
included in cost of sales

Trademarks included in
cost of sales

Loss on disposaliwrite-off of
property, plant and equipment
Operating lease rental in respect of:

Rented premises
Other equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments
Research costs included in

cost of sales

Staff costs, inclusive of directors’

remuneration:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme

contributions

Truly International Holdings Limited

AR AR HRR
THIRIREER

REREAE
232G e
FERA

TSR ITE R#H -

ME - BE k&
BERX WM
(FEABHERAE)
EiR
(FEABERAE)

HE MEmE -
E Nk EiE
rEdnESRE
HEMZE

H &R HE

R RN E SR
MIRAA
(FEABERAE)
BITRA
BHRESHE :
¥ra kEMmEF
RARAE TR B 5K

Of the consolidated profit for the year of HK$702,029,000
(2006: HK$532,046,000), a profit of HK$235,306,000
(2006: HK$225,307,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Annual Report 2007

2007 2006
—ests [EEEL TN
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ER FHET
7,160 3,583
1,977 1,842
5,336,606 3,612,475
263,398 173,135
10,625 10,625
210 262
274,233 184,022
1,563 471
4,729 4,122

- 484

3,245 2,598
10,624 11,465
374,193 230,387
19,408 11,547

702,029,000/ 7t 2 A F E iR AR
FE R (ZZT T X4 ¢ 532,046,000/8
JC) + 235,306,000/ 7T (Z T /N F ¢
225,307,000/ 70) BEEAR 7 2 B 7%
WMEREIE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

10. EEM &

Lam Wai
Wah, Steven
(Chairman
and
Managing
Director)
hEE
(€333
f £
ige)
HK$'000
TER

2007 —E%t
Directors' fees: ESHe:
Executive i
Independent non-executive BN
Other emoluments paid to the SRTHTES
executive directors: ZEMME -
Salaries and other benefits HeREMET
Performance related incentive HBEERN KRG
payments (note 1) (&)
Contributions to retirement BRI EIER
benefit scheme
2006 ZETR
Directors' fees: ESHE
Executive i
Independent non-executive BUERIT
Other emoluments paid to the APREEL
executive directors: Hinfie :
Salaries and other benefits Fe REMRET
Performance related incentive REEHH RS
payments (note 1) (&)
Contributions to retirement RNER R
benefit scheme
Notes:

(1) The performance related incentive payments are determined as a

2113

EX

24

1137

24

2,137

Wong Pong
Chun, James
(Executive
Director)

EE
(#fr
%)

HK$'000
TAT

1,296

24

1,274

Cheung Tat

Sang, James
(Marketing

Director)

REL
(MiAkE
%)

HK$'000
TEL

2,832

1,640
875

24

2,539

percentage of the turnover and operating profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

(2) During the year ended 31 December 2006, Mr. Wong Pong Chun,
James and Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, James were granted certain share
options of the Company and the deemed benefits arising from the
grant of those share options are HK$3,333,000 and HK$3,333,000
respectively. The deemed benefits represented the fair value of the share
options granted, calculated on the basis set out in note 33.

Li Jian Hua
(Production
Managing
Director)
TEE
(%% ChungKam IpChoTing,  Heung Kai
B Kwong Spencer Sing Total
BiEe) b 2 FHH a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TEL

3312

- 88 30 30 148
1,800 - - - 6,803
1,500 - - - 2375

12 - - - 84
3312 88 30 30 9,410
GES
(1) RRESNZESHEAEERE
TELFT-ASt—BEEEZE
EEREBEHZEHUERE -
@ REE-FEAFT-ASt-AL

EMERARAR]

ZER EHBEAERTREELEE
BAARETHERENRAEEZS
EREMEEFRIEREG ZFED R
/43,333,000 7% 7t % 3,333,000 7T © #
RIEBEZ MR IEEEEEREZ A
FE - LM EEIBEMEAEEE -

—TTLETR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

11. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 1.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2006: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out in note 10 above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2006: two) individuals
were as follows:

EEME

ARBEERATMHALBES
Z(ZBBAF: Z2)AAAL
B HAMeHBEEHR LXK E
10° ABME(ZFTAF: MA)
ERZMEMT -

Salaries and other benefits Fre MEMET

Share based payments LARR 15 A B i 2 3R

Performance related incentive HEERR RS
payments

Contributions to retirement benefit & 4k & F 5+ 21 (£ 2
scheme

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2007 2006
—EELH ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FAT
3,954 3,660
- 3,333
36
EHEEME 22BN T :

2007 2006
—EFLHE ZEETRF
Number of Number of
employees employees

EE#E EE#E

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T Z 2,000,000 % 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T, % 2,500,000% T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T Z 3,000,000% 7T
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % JT. % 5,000,000/% JT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

12. DIVIDENDS

12. 2

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:

Interim dividend of 25 HK cents
(2006: 23 HK cents) per share
Final dividend in respect of 2006 of
25 HK cents (2006: in respect of

2005 of 25 HK cents)
per share

A final dividend of 30 HK cents (2006: 25 HK cents) per share
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is

based on the following data:

Earnings

2007

=t 1 T

HK$°000

FHT
RAE R
HEZBE

BIREF AR B Z R 2581l
(ZZEZTRF  2380) 117,985
BIRE S XNF 2 RERE
FR25BA (ZEZRF -
—ETRHFZKRY
% 825 811) 117,358

13. ERETR

TIBEE

il

2007
—TFTLH
HK$'000

T# T

Earnings for the purposes of basic
and diluted earnings per share

BEFTEBRER
N E R A 702,029

EMERARAR]

BREXRRNREK

2006
ZETRF
HK$'000
FET

107,640

114,626

222,266

R B ERI0BA (=BT REF :
EMW EREFRZE  YALARK
RREEBRRBFERE LA -

BERNTE

2006
“BERHF
HK$'000
T

532,046
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ZEMBREMEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13. 8lREF (@)
Number of shares e AR =
2006
—ZEETR
Weighted average number of REFTESRER
ordinary shares for the purposes Bz hnHEF 15
of basic earnings per share TER#EE 470,304,880 463,925,689
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary VB 1T A
shares: BEazpe .
Share options issued by ANQ R FTEAT
the Company 2 BB R 11,156,785 6,912,977
Weighted average number of RIEtEBIREE
ordinary shares for the purposes Bz hnHEF 5
of diluted earnings per share TmRE e 481,461,665 470,838,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
GEMBFRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CoST

At 1 January 2006
Currency realignment
Transfer

Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2006
Currency realignment
Transfer

Additions
Disposals/write off

At 31 December 2007

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2006

Currency realignment

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2006

Currency realignment

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals/
write off

At 31 December 2007

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

Buildings
BF
HK$'000
FHET
BAE
RZZERF—A—H 331,294
Sl 3,562
B 25,102
NE 12,691
HE _
RZZZERE+ZA=+—H 372,649
Sl 8,489
R 237,277
nNE 8,882
HE -
WR-_ZTLE+-RA=+—-A0 627,297
8 R E
70,820
EHRE 516
REERE 9,161
HEHH -
RZZEZRE+ZA=+—H 80,497
EHRE 1,540
REERE 9,759
&
R_FFLtE+-RA=+—-H 91,796
REE
R-_FETL&E+-B=+—A 535501
RZEEAE+ZRB=+—H 292,152

Furniture,
fixtures
and
equipment
B RE
R
HK$'000
FET

154,425
5,319

58,726
(738)

217,732
13,829

125,234
(1,894)

354,901

92,674
3,145
21,466
(267)
117,018
8,295
33,119
(1,667)

156,765

198,136

100,714

The cost of buildings is depreciated over forty years or the
terms of the respective leases, whichever is the shorter, using
the straight-line method.

z an n
14. %~ BERE

Properties

Plant and Motor under
machinery vehicles development Total
B R RE  BRYOE ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
1,436,637 19,331 2,687 1,944,374
42,762 330 " 51,984
- - (25,102) -
155,752 1,030 231,995 460,194
- - - (738)
1,635,151 20,691 209,591 2,455,814
93,676 696 11,845 128,535
- - (237,277) -
1,636,454 12,155 229,334 2,012,059
(15,632) - - (17,526)
3,349,649 33,542 213,493 4,578,882
675,868 13,560 - 852,922
22,379 264 - 26,304
140,448 2,060 - 173,135
- - - (267)
838,695 15,884 - 1,052,094
54,573 632 - 65,040
215,474 5,046 - 263,398
(14,296) - - (15,963)
1,094,446 21,562 - 1,364,569
2,255,203 11,980 213,493 3,214,313
796,456 4,807 209,591 1,403,720

BT 2 R AE BOK A M+ 5 F
SEBHEFH(UREE) TE -

EMERARAR]

T FFT

&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERBE @)

(continued)

The other items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a reducing balance method at the following
rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 50%
Plant and machinery 15% to 40%
Motor vehicles 25% to 45%

HWE BMEEREZEE AR
BIERE  BUTERFERE

R RERZHE 15% £50%
R 5 Bt 23 15% Z 40%
RE 25% ZE45%

2007 2006
—zets [T
HK$'000 HK$/000
T T

The carrying value of the Group’s bl K& B ¥k
property interests shown above ZEEERE
comprises:

Leasehold properties in Hong Kong 1RIZRHEIFH O EFTEZ B
held under medium term leases 2 HREYE

Leasehold properties in the PRC RERPHENEFREES
held under medium term leases =N -/ E

Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. B HEFKIE

2007

= T
HK$000
FHT

The Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong
held under medium-term lease

Land use rights in the PRC held
under medium-term lease

Analysed for reporting
purposes as:
Non-current asset
Current asset

AEERNEEFRBERRE

REBFHBMENERE
FAEZEE L
RigPHEANE
TERA 2 T A

BERE HY
DI
ERBEE
TENE B

9,249

113,904

119,908
3,245

EMERARAR]

2006
ZETRF
HK$'000
FET

4,469

97,218

101,687

99,089
2,598

101,687

—TTLETR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
GEMBFRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B & &

Development Technical
expenditure know-how  Trademarks Total
BRIY HAFEOR 5 k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FTEL FEL FTEL
COST BAE
At 1 January 2006 RZZE E—HA—H 38,922 - 3,304 42,226
Additions N 4,680 - 160 4,840
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERE+ZA
=t+—H 43,602 - 3,464 47,066
Additions =N - 19,601 - 19,601
Write off bk - - (2,052) (2,052)
At 31 December 2007 RIEELE
+-A=+-RH 43,602 19,601 1,412 64,615
AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2006 —“EERF-A-H 20,014 - 2,810 22,824
Provided for the year REEEE 10,625 - 262 10,887
At 31 December 2006 RZZERF
+ZA=+—H 30,639 - 3,072 33,711
Provided for the year KEFEE 10,625 - 210 10,835
Eliminated on write-off bR - - (2,052) (2,052)
At 31 December 2007 RZIESLE
+-A=+—-H 41,264 - 1,230 42,494
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2007 RIFESLE
+-A=+-RH 2,338 19,601 182 22,121
At 31 December 2006 ZETARFF A=t
H 12,963 - 392 13,355

Development expenditure, technical know-how and
trademarks are amortised on a straight-line basis over 4 years.

BRb  RMEXMNBEREET
NEGEEH B RTF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

17.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17.

—REIERFAZHER

T}

Cost of investment in unlisted
associate

Share of post-acquisition profits,

net of dividend received

WEFLE™

Bt 8 N B CAR
P MBS R
MR E kR

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December
2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2007 2006
LAl —TTiF
Fit T
500 >00

(109) 338

AEEBR-_ZEZLFR_ZTETRF
+ZA=+—BHZBERAZFE
m

Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
Form of Country of capital held
business incorporation/  Class of shares by the Group
structure operation held AEEBHEE
Name of associate X318 M BT 5 B% 4 Z B#{THB A& Principal activity
BENRAE ZEN EEBER mal REEZESL TEXH
Truly Instrument Korea Incorporated South Korea Ordinary 50% Trading of electronic
Company Limited HAEE [E2Ed T im consumer products

(formerly known as

Fast Clean (Korea) Ltd.)

Truly Instrument Korea

Company Limited

(A1 78 Fast Clean
(Korea) Ltd.)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below:

BTHEERES

AEBBZERRAABMBERTL
W

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Group’s share of net assets of
an associate

mEE
mAE
FEE

AEBE RS — K=
NEFEE

2007 2006
—EELs —EEAE
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET

1,408 2,695
(627) (1,019)
1676
838

(Y=l E NG| BT HFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ZEMBREMEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. —REERNBIZEE 2
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2007 31.12.2006
BE #E
= 5% —BEXREF
+=AH +=A
=+—8 =+—H
IEEE HFEE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue W 25 4,438 5,510

Loss for the year KEEER (668)

Group’s share of loss of an associate 7 £ & 4 4 g 15 — %

for the year RN ) F | (334)
18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. AJEHEKRSE

2007 2006

—EELE ZETREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ExT FHET

Unlisted equity shares, at cost IE IR (3R R AN E ) 10,500 10,500
The investments represent the unlisted equity shares issued by ZRERXT KRB ANILAEE
private entities in Japan. The investments stated at cost less BT LTRAENEZE - AR H
impairment at each balance sheet date because the range EEBRAFTEzZAFHERK  EF
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the REHEHRNFEIEIETE B8R

directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair FREE HREANERBES S

value cannot be measured reliably.
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GEMBRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

19. INVENTORIES

Raw materials R
Work in progress TS
Finished goods S4B

20. LOANS RECEIVABLE

20. BB K

2007 2006
—TLE —EEAE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
395,163 202,533
203,521 139,521
209,323 177,024
519,078

2007 2006

=t 121 “EEAE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T

Fixed-rate loan receivable (Note 1) &2 W E K (FizX1)
Interest-free loan receivable (Note 2) 4 S fE L E 3k (M£X2)

Notes:

1. The amount is unsecured and will be received within one year. With
reference to the loan agreement entered into between the Company
and independent third parties, after the expiry of the loan agreement,
the Company or its designated entity can participate in the public
tender and auction for sale of the land and the loan would consider
as the retention money or purchase consideration in the auction. If,
however, the Company or its designated entity does not obtain such
land use right under such tender and auction, the independent third
party agrees to repay and compensate the Company by repaying
the principal outstanding balance together with the interest which is
calculated on the basis of the contemporary lending interest rate of 0.465%
per month quoted by the People’s Bank of China. Any further delay in
the repayment of the outstanding balance will subject to an additional
penalty interest of 2% per month.

2. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and will be received within one
year.

42,891 -
10,551 -

53,442 -

o

1.

FZHRARERA AR -FARE -
RIBERRREBIE =TT L EK
Wk REERBHIBR  ARF)
FEETERAISETHMHENDRH
BRERAE  MEFBEARESTH
REFORFMERE - AT - WAL
AIREEFERAREZARBANE
FEDZTERE BIE=TR
BERMEBREREERNS &R F
SUAFEARRITRMEE A E G
HFIE0.465% WAL E - NEER
FEANEE - B - FIEEERE
e AIZES RBMN2%MEE ©

HZFRARERR  RERAR—FA
Ym -

ENBEBRERAR - —ZETLFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EWERIE K H it EUL TR 1E

2007 2006

=L £ 23 —EEAE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T

Trade receivables FE W BE 18 972,272 552,420
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts J5 : REE# # (9,150) (12,907)

963,122 539,513
Other receivables H b JEUER R 67,552 47,191

Total trade and other receivables IR BRI &

Hqth fE UK BR B RE 1,030,674 586,704
The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in REBLEHEEETREEEE U
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant SN2 EMHEZ RUBRZREINAT -

group entities are set out below:

2007 2006
—gTLE —EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T

Denominated in HK$ LA TR E 53,139 37,904
Denominated in Euro LABK TR E 2,115 1,751
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REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30
to 90 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful
debts at the reporting date:

Within 60 days 60K AR
61 to 90 days 61290K
More than 90 days 90K M E

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit
rating limits for each customer. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. 81% of the trade receivables are
neither past due nor impaired.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$181,902,000 (2006:
HK$163,406,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

1. BWERIE R H fth B U 518

(%)

AEBHETEESEP FH30E0
AOEEH - RER 2 BKIREA
BMARBRBEZREDTWT

2007 2006

=t L 2T —EERE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T

909,199 442,116
14,271 43,761
39,652 53,636

REMNTIRAFEEAN  ~EEEFT
HEBEBRFZEEEEREEER
FzEEFLRBE L TEFPZE
ERBESFEE N -81%2EHK
BRIBHY KRB RBIE -

REEZEBEREHNBIELRE
T & 49 /181,902,000 78 7T 2 & U BR
F(ZZZT N4 :163,406,000/8 7T )
ZEFBERBKEACBSH  EHRL
HEEEETEEAEHAZEE
Me Ul - B AN 5 B 3P £ 1 R
EEERE ASBVERZESE
i A T -

ENBEBRERAR - —ZETLFER
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ZEMBREMEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved)  21. FEUXBRIE & H b fE U =k 1B

(%)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past EHEHERNEZEBWRE
due but not impaired RO HTWT -
2007 2006
—ETLE —ZETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Within 60 days 60K A 127,979 88,135
61 to 90 days 61 290K 14,271 43,761
More than 90 days 90K A £ 39,652 53,636
181,902 185,532
Movement in the allowance for doubtful FRBHENES
debts
2007 2006
—ETtHE ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
Balance at beginning of the year F 455 (12,907) (9,324)
Impairment losses recognised on & #& 52 E Y FRIE R (E B 18
receivables (VA )] (3,583)
Amounts written off as uncollectible ##i $4 &~ 7] U [B] 7 K18 10,917 -
Balance at end of the year FREE (9,150) (12,907)
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually HREBARBERERERE
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HRMEEE AR EE 2R
HK$7,160,000 (2006: HK$3,583,000) which the debtors have BRB K B 15 48 {E /&7,160,000 7 7T 2
financial difficulties in repaying the outstanding balances. The BYRBRERKEBRE(ZZEZREF
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. 35830008 7) - AEEY EtZSE

BB AEAER -
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HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 22, B —REBiENRIRE
The amount due from an associate was unsecured, interest- FEM — KB & D R FRIB B EEE
free and fully repaid during the year. REBWERFATRER -

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. iTEEMIA

Assets Liabilities
BE &f&

2007 2006 2007 2006
gt [EEEUUN —srts [EEEDG
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fn ST FH

Foreign currency forward HNERIIAH
contracts 27,016 12,074
Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts as at 31 INERBEHOR_ZZTLF+=A
December, 2007 are as follows: —t+—HZEZEHZOT -

Aggregate principal

amount Maturity Forward exchange rates
AEHBE EHHR mHEXR
US$93,000,000 From January 2008 to November 2008  Sell RMB/ buy US$ at 6.8390 to 7.4090
93,000,000 JT ZZENF-AEZEZZTZTNF+—H LA6.8390%F 7.4090
BEHARE BAZET
US$93,000,000 From January 2008 to November 2008  Sell US$/ buy RMB at 7.0033 to 7.5653
93,000,000 7T —ZEENF-REZZZNF+—H LA7.0033E%7.5653
BEHETBAARYE

ENBEBRERAR - —ZETLFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated
in currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant

24, SRITHEBFERESE

AEBAEAEEERINEEEIA
S BEINEZRTEFERASH

group entities are set out below: s
Japanese
Yen HK$ RMB Euro
=] T AR 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2007 W-_ZE 4
+=—A=+—H - 51,273 - -
As at 31 December 2006 R_ZTEF
+ZA=+—H 728,402 40,438 2,197 4,829

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which ranged
from 0.61% to 5.0% (2006: 0.13% to 4.74%) per annum.

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payable at the
balance sheet date:

RITHETFIENT061%E50%(=ZF
TXNE 013%5E474%) 2 T 5 F
FIEREE -

25. fEfHBRIE & H fth & {7 =R
REH B2 B RERB AT M

Within 60 days 60K LA
61 to 90 days 612 90K
More than 90 days 90K IA E

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60-90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe.

Truly International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007

2007 2006
“EFLE —EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
664,287 472,881
128,189 93,982
181,830 87,854
654,717

974,306

RBEMNFIIEEHR0ED
ReAKBFEBEE ZWHER
EEBER UWHBANEEHAXN
P FEAS FRIR -
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GEMBRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The Group’s trade payables that are denominated in currencies
other than functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

25. EAERIE R H BT K1’

(%)

AEBNEAEEERINEEEIA
Shz E¥ESIE 2 ENIRIBHIIMT -

2007
—EFtHE
HK$'000
T#ET

2006
ZETRF
HK$'000
T T

Denominated in HK$ LB TLETE
Denominated in Japanese Yen A B E&HE
Denominated in Euro AR T EHE

384,237
107,695
£1:7

EMERARAR]

226,553
26,806
353

—TTLETR
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS, 26. SRITRHEMEE » KM
UNSECURED
2007 2006
—EFLHE —EEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#& T FET
Bank loans RITEE 1,094,121 524,602
Trust receipt loans EWEER 268,030 249,938

Other loans EHER 24,505 -

1,386,656 774,540

The Group’s bank and other REBUEBE
borrowings that are denominated & 52 1) 42 &5 ¥ DA Sh 2
in currencies other the functional — & 5{E Z R1T &
currencies of the relevant group HMEEHINWT -
entities are set out below:

Denominated in HK$ LB TTEHE 1,195,416 661,722
Denominated in Japanese Yen LA B E&HE 9,559 6,300

The maturity profile of the bank and $R77 R A& & >~

other borrowings is as follows: A AERDT
On demand or within one year REARIR —FR 698,597 566,696
More than one year, but not —FRERBMFA
exceeding two years 440,680 123,966
More than two years, but not MEEBRAFNA
exceeding five years 247,379 83,878
1,386,656 774,540
Less: Amount due within one year 5 : JIR A B ES
shown under current liabilities Z—FERNEHIE (698,597) (566,696)
Amount due after one year —F 1 B ARk I8 688,059 207,844
All the Group’s borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which AEBMAEEORFEMEE &
carry interest at HIBOR or LIBOR plus certain basis points. REBRITREFRENHERERITE
Interest is repricing every three months and the range of EFEMETERYEFFE - FE
effective interest rates is at 5.13% to 7.88% (2006: 4.70% to BE=RBRAETFT BERMNEZFEX
6.88%) per annum. 1B/E B513% £7.88% ( Z T T /NF -

470% E6.88% ) °
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27. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

27. IEEFIE

EARRZAFEAERNEER

EHEBE(EE) REZBHHOT

prior years:
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Others Total
MERIERE H it wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FERT FET
At 1 January 2006 MRZETRE
—H—H 38,150 (415) 37,735
Charge (credit) to income for P EE WA 57 84
the year (ER) 755 421) 334
At 1 January 2007 NR_ZELF
—H—H 38,905 (836) 38,069
(Credit) charge to income for  REFWAH (EE)
the year S| (4,824) 36 (4,788)
At 31 December 2007 RIEZLF
+=-—A=+—H 34,081 (800) 33,281

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

M BE2MME 2BEERIBSRD

Mo

2007

=t 1 T
HK$°000
FHT

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

ERETHIEEE
EXETIREE

2006
ZETRF
HK$'000
T T

34,081
(800)

EMERARAR]

38,905
(836)

38,069

—TTLETR
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses

of HK$60,876,000 (2006: HK$55,470,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$6,573,000 (2006: HK$12,684,000) that

will expire from 2007 to 2010, other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of HK$6,218,000 (2006: HK$6,218,000)
available for offset against future profit. A deferred tax asset
has not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

28. SHARE CAPITAL

27. IBEEFIE ()

REER AEB2ABARBE
860,876,000 /& ;L ( = T T X F ¢
55,470,000 & 7T ) AT A 1E 3K 85 oK 2K
A o AR RBEEE AR ZET
AT ERZEEBERELTH
BEE ABRZBBEBEEBES
NR-BE+FE_T-TEERZ
/5 186,573,000t ( Z T T N F -
12,684,000 78 7T ) + i £ i &5 18 7] 4%
fREfAEE -

REER  ASB 2 HMATNRY
FF = 586,218,000 8 L (Z TR F ¢
6,218,000 & 7T ) A] A 1E K 85 K A&
e BRKRREGTBRZHEFR - &
WEBERECHREELE -

28. IR A

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 SR EE0.1E T2

Number of shares
BE

Share capital
N
2007 2006
—ETLH e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THETT

each TR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January and 31 R—HA—B kK
December +ZA=+—8 REEOLLLLE 650,000,000 65,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREAR
At 1 January R—HA—H LR TICY N 458,164,527 46,830 45,816

Exercise of share options 17 f& & % #

At 31 December

Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 33.
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29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 20. EARE B IE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in REBETERNEEUARRALIEE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BERELKE RRABELERSR
while maximising the return to shareholders through the BaTERRRERZADR K
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's SEBAERENE F-FERFD
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. B o

AEENEARBEHERFR (R
M6 TR Z B3R KK E 2
ERREEEER) LRE(BED#
TR R i) AR »

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 26 (net of cash and
cash equivalents) and equity, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

ARREEERNESHEARRE -
ERBEHN D EFEEEL
BMARBEEBRENERZRER -
AEBEBEEBINERE - BITH
Pt~ wITHEXRBELRBEE A
FEHBBEARE -

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing

debt.
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30 gt T H
a. Categories of financial instruments a. TMIASTHE
2007 2006
—EFLHE ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ExT FAET
Financial assets EREE
Loan and receivable (including Bk & & U 5k 18
cash and cash equivalents) (BEFERES K
NWEEEER) 1,552,611 1,558,584
Available-for-sale investments A EERE 10,500 10,500
Derivative financial instruments  #74 4 g T & 27,016 -
1,590,127 1,569,084
Financial liabilities SRLER
Amortised cost 58 X AN 2,722,090 1,616,172
Derivative financial instruments {744 @ T A 12,074 -
2,734,164 1,616,172
EHBER AR AR T LFFR 91
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

30 £ T H»)

b.

Truly International Holdings Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, loans receivable, derivative financial
instruments, available-for-sale investments, bank and
other borrowings, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes.

The management monitors and manages the financial
risk relating to the Group through internal risk
assessment which analyses exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. The risks include market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies which are
different from the United States dollar, the
functional currency of the certain group entities
and the Group is mainly exposed to foreign
currencies risk due to the change in United
States dollar. The Group currently has entered
into foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge against its exposure to change of foreign
exchange rate. However, as these foreign currency
forward contracts do not qualify for hedge
accounting, they are deemed as financial assets or
financial liabilities held for trading.

Annual Report 2007
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ERMEAREEERER
BUR

AEBZEELBMTABER
TRERRS  BYRER - 17
EEMTA  AHREERE -
RATIEE R EMER - R
BRR L it 8 M R IB DA R B A BR
ERAMENRE RTA
2 FEE R B 5 Bl 5 1

= o

EEEBEBRNIARARTES
ERMEEREERTEHE -
- N = NS E TS
BERemER - ZFRBEE
mERB(BEEERR - A
ZEEREMESRRE) &
BERBLEABESRER - BFIE
ZERBHOBEHNRTX - F
BEeEBhERTBBER -
MERLKKEE SN HMEEEEME
i

ARG By B A SRS D H AT — 4

—f-

T 35 L bR
() HWERB
REBNETZH UM

BEtE REHNERA
MEBERBNEER (X
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30 £ T E (#)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. €A EKEEBRBRER
policies (continued) B3R (&)
Market risk (continued) % E kR (&)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) E®BERKE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign REEBH KEEIU
currency denominated monetary assets and INEFIBE2EEEER
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as E¥aBEsEEABENT
follows:
Liabilities Assets
& BE

2007 2006 2007 2006
T3t pmERYNGE "TTLF NG
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x TET TET TET

Hong Kong dollar BT 1,810,067 1,063,285 139,929 90,892
Japanese Yen H 130,710 47,996 10,500 728,402

ENBEBRERAR - —ZETLFER
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30 £ T B (#)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. € EKEEBRER
policies (continued) BUR (&)
Market risk (continued) ™ 15 B (48)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) () E®EKE)
Sensitivity analysis B E 4 0
The following table indicates the approximate TRETHRDEEE
change in the Group’s profit for the year in (%) AR EER
response to reasonably possible change in the HEAmYENRRZ
functional currency i.e. United State dollar to HEE®EAEEIRNE
the relevant currencies which the Group have BE®H MBHAE
significant exposure at the balance sheet date. BaPTEEHREEE) -
2007 2006
—EEtF ZEER
United United
States States
dollar dollar
strengthen 3748 strengthen Effect
(weaken) on profit (weaken) on profit
EEFAE i 71 XEAE kil
(Bzf&) % (B218) va
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
Hong Kong dollar T 1% 16,701 1% 9,724
(1%) (16,701) (1%) (9,724)
Japanese Yen H & 5% 6,536 5% (34,020)
(5%) (6,536) (5%) 34,020
The sensitivity analysis has been determined BRERE DT HBEINEEREHRN
assuming that the change in foreign exchange EEBRERLE RAREEANSE
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and ERMZBEBHPEAEITESRITA
had been applied to each of the group entities’ AN EERRE  MmAmEHmE
exposure to currency risk for non-derivative ERFTE -

financial instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variable remain constant.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The stated changes represent the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rate over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the
group entities’ profit or loss measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rate ruling at
the balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2006.

(i)  Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances, loans receivable
and variable-rate bank and other borrowings (see
note 26 for details of these borrowings). It is the
Group's policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed
in the liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
and LIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings.

30 £t T HE ()
b. £ EAREEBEER
BUR (&)
HiG R (&)
() &%ERKE)
WRE S ()

(ii)

FAEBAEREYR
ET-FEEEAMIL
59 01 51 5 S A 4 R
ZARBBMTME - k
EBERZANBERAA
EEEEBIAS O
5 5 51 ) 98 3 PR B
pEnmE - I ANE
WA EANERRE A
BAERTASE %D
B EE - EEAE
FAR 2 A 1T o

Il % B B
AEBEAAZERE RN
TRk ZERITKA
RITHEEF BEREFRK
FRBITEENREAM
ER(ZEHEEZHES
RIEE26) 2 RITH5H
RXBgH AEEZHEK
Bt B R AE 8 F
Tﬁg’uyﬂ$@ﬂ

SR ERIK

.

FEEREsMEER
CRBEMAENER
b 2 5 1B E RN A M R
HESREREE -
AEEZRESRANER
b2 ok B 7 & B LA T3
BzEE FEEHFR
BEERITAEFRE KRB
BIRITRFEFE 2 &

ENEREERAR - —ZETLFFR
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30 £ T H»)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. EMEAKEZEEERR
policies (continued) BUR (&)
Market risk (continued) im Rk (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FERERE)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowings and bank
balances. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of asset and liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was existed for the whole
year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 December 2007 would decrease/increase

by HK$13,873,000 (2006: decrease/increase by
HK$7,745,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank
balances and bank and other borrowings.

(iii) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to other price risk through
the Group’s available-for-sales investments and
derivative financial instruments.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below show the exposure
to change in forward exchange rate on the
derivative financial instruments assets. Sensitivity
rate of 5% represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in forward
exchange rate.
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(iii)
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30.

ZELF+_A=+—BILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(iii) Other price risk (continued)

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year

30 £t T HE ()

bh. £MEAREEEER
BUR (#)
% E kR (&)
(i) HtEEERK(E)
REEHFIL I, CGRD)

At 31st December,

®+=A=+—H
2007 2006

L ERTN —zzi
HK$000 HK$'000
FHT T

—as a result of increase in
forward exchange rate
—as a result of decrease in
forward exchange rate

—EHERX LT

—EHIERTK

The sensitivity analyses below show the
exposure to change in forward exchange rate
on the derivative financial instruments liabilities.
Sensitivity rate of 5% represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

forward exchange rate.

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year

1,351 -

(1,351) -

ATBERESMBROIESRTA
BEEHEXEH 2EBE - HEEX
5% RREEELHEMERT 5
HIRA BB EL MM -

KEERFE M (RD)

At 31st December,

—as a result of increase in
forward exchange rate
—as a result of decrease in
forward exchange rate

~EBEE L7

—EHIERT

®+=A=+—H
2007 2006
—zets [t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
(604) -
604 -
BRERERART - —BELFEFR
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Truly International Holdings Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to perform an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Other than loans receivable as disclosed in note 20,

the Group does not have significant concentration of
credit risk as trade receivables consist of a large number
of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management

of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Annual Report 2007

30 £ T H»)

b.

TREAREEBER
BUR (#)

EERRK
RZEZ+LF+A=+—
A AEBREHFHFRERTT
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2007, the
Group has available banking facilities of approximately
HK$1,223,984,000 (2006: HK$1,314,181,000). Details
of bank and other borrowings are set out in note 26.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flow.

For derivative instruments settle on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash outflows are presented.

30 £t T HE ()

b.

EMEAREEERR
B3R (4#)

mEE & AR
REBRRBDELRARE K&
EREERABRERRSSE
BEEEREZERARRZK
T B AR E 2 SE ROR
ERSRERDIHE - B2
EEESDAEEIER ¥
FEAR T B -

AEBGRIETEEEAR
t&F+-_A=+—8 £&£H
AHACZRITEREENA
1,223,984,000 B ;L ( Z 2 & X
£ :1,314,181,00078 7T ) ° $R1T
BERAEMEE ZFBHRMH
i26°

TERFAZINAEECRERE
ZRBEHNFY -  ZRBEAR
SEAER RFAHESREA
BZARFRBRSREINFEITE
ERMAE  ZREEMNERAE
EHREM

REFEEENITE T RARSF
BB RHFEET -

ENEREERAR - —ZETLFFR
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30 £t T H (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. € EKEEBRER
policies (continued) BUR (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REEEER (&)
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective undiscounted amount at
interestrate  Oto3months  4-6 months  7-12 months 1-2 year 23 years 3-5 years cash flows 31.12.2007
RIFELE
+ZA
L £ KR =t+-H8
BB FE-@R MERER +E+ZfEA -EWE MEZ% ZERF  ReR#R REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL FEL TR TEL TAL TR TEL

2007 k5 3
Non-derivative FiTEIA
instruments
Trade and other payables EREER
Efp AR 1,334,781 1,334,781 1,334,781
Variable interest rate bank 2 RTEER
and other borrowings Hipfg & . 394,408 89,513 253,580 419,222 232,230 1,482,391 1,387,309

1,729,189 89,513 253,580 419,222 232,230 2,817,174 2,722,090

Derivative instruments fi*IR

- net settlement -BFEEE
Foreign exchange forward B EJSNE A4
contracts - outflow ik (3.799) (12074) (12,074)
2006 2288
Non-derivative FTEIR
instruments
Trade and other payable EHERER
AN 841,632 - - - - - 841,632 841,632
Variable interest rate bank ~ RTFEEER
and other borrowings HifeE 58 412,430 64,146 110,227 135,356 71,045 12,014 811,218 774,540
1,254,062 64,146 110,227 135,356 77,045 12,014 1,652,850 1,616,172
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fairvalue
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions as
input.

The foreign currency forward contracts are classified
as derivative financial instruments are measured at
fair value at each balance sheet date. Their fair values
are determined based on the difference between the
market forward rates at the balance sheet date for
remaining duration of the outstanding contracts and
their contracted forward rates.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

30 £t T HE ()

C.

nEE
TREERSREE(REN
EERTA) 2AFEGRE
EEEXNEEBRAZRITAR
ReERDMEE - TRRER
DITMBRABRE 2 E R TS
RBERBRFEETE -

EHHIEANIATES R
TE REFEBEATVER
E-HAFERBRTREH
ZHRHEHRBEEANTIE
HiEREHEFTNEMER 2%
BET -

EERRBREBHEKAIALKRE
MBERRZeREERTREA
BEZHEEERELAFERSE -

ENEREERAR - —ZETLFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ZEMBREMEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. BEHAAE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments REER  XEBETAHBELE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable T4 2 R R A AR A0 KA 2 B
operating leases which fall due as follows: HBAWmT

2007 2006

—EEtH ZETRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#Ex FET

Within one year —F R 5,581 2,613

Within two years K% 4,541 1,117
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEBNOEREEGEETHRAE
Group for certain of its office premises and other equipment. MEREMBEMEN 2ES - F
Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years with BHBEHBAME  WAEEHES -

fixed rentals.

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EARKIE
2007 2006
—_EFTLHE —ZEERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Capital expenditure contracted for FLEEME M EED T4
but not provided in the BRELRE MG REF
consolidated financial Bz ERTH
statements in respect of
acquisition of plant and equipment 115,409 1,106,216

Capital expenditure authorised but 5t 88 & i &= M & &
not contracted for in respect of EERBERRITA
acquisition of plant and equipment 7 &A% 600,000 600,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBFRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+F+_A=+—HLEFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to resolutions passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 22 December 2003, the
Company has terminated a share option scheme which was
adopted on 22 May 2001 (the “Old Scheme”) and adopted a
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”).

(i) Old Scheme
The purpose of the Old Scheme is to motivate
employees of the Group and to allow them to
participate in the growth of the Company. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Old Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the share capital of the Company
in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual is not permitted to exceed 25% of the
aggregate number of shares for the time being issued
and issuable under the Old Scheme. Any participants
who accepts an offer of the grant of an option in
accordance with the terms of the Old Scheme shall pay
to the Company HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof within a period of 30 days from the
date on which an option is offered to the participant.

At 31 December 2007, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted previously and
remained outstanding under the Old Scheme was
540,000 (2006: 3,963,000), representing approximately
0.1% (2006: 0.8%) of total issued share capital of the
Company. The options are exercisable at any time until
21 May 2011.

33.

B ESE

BRAAFIR-PE=4+= 7
ST CRBRAZBERAA LIRS
ZRER  ARFAEKLER-TE
—EHAZ T BEMZ R
BB 8] TRM—EHER
w3t E ) -

(i)

E&tE

EtgleadmAEE 2R
B UEEFSLERNRFZIE
E-REEAETTROIZE
BEMERZBENEE &5
THEBARATEEHETR
A10% ° A &% T ] {8 5l A =
ZBBEmS k2B BA
e T SHEBERREETE
BETRAET 2RO A
25% ° fEfA AR 4% B &t 8 R 3
MTERBERE 22 BEAR
BhERT2EEERE30
BARKREFRARARE N
1.00/8 7T °

RZEELF+—_A=+—
H:EfEETZERLES
RITEBAREFTH K 2 IR 1D &
B &540,000 % (ZZZ X F :
3,963,000 J& )  fh A 2 AR 7%
HZEBEITRH0I%(ZEE
N 0.8%) o HERR HE O] BE RS
FUTFE BEE-_T——FhH
B-+—Hlt -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-ZTZ+F+_A=+—HLFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 33. BER#ERE o)
(i) Old Scheme (continued) (i) &8 &)
The following tables disclose details of the Company's TEHRERE (BEEE)E
share options held by the employees (including directors) RABIEREZFBERNFEA
and movements in such holdings during the year: 2B E BN -
2007 —EELE
Number of options
BhRENA
Exercisable Exercise  Outstanding at Exercised during  Outstanding at Exercised during  Outstanding at
Date of grant period price 1.1.2006 the year 31.12.2006 the year 31.12.2007
RZESRE RZESLE
RZEERE +ZA +ZA
—-RA-8 =+-H =+-H
BHAH TESHM TR ) £ 176 ERfTE RATE ERTE 17 6
HKS
B
Directors:
E%:
16 July 2001 17.7.2001 to 2.19%6 11,390,000 (8,690,000) 2,700,000 (2,300,000) 400,000
2152011
22 —E%-%
tA+RA tA++AZE
“E—F
BAZt-H
Employees:
B8 :
16 July 2001 17.7.2001 to 2.196 2,705,000 (1,442,000 1,263,000 (1,123,000 140,000
2152011
“2T-F “ZE-f
tATRE tATLEZE
E——f
AA=T-H
14,095,000 (10,132,000 3,963,000 (3,423,000) 540,000
The average closing price of the Company’s share FR RITEBREMBITZAR
immediately before the date(s) on which the options AR ZzZFIMEAETIINETL(ZF
were exercised and at dates of exercise is HK$7.39 (2006: TRF 10278 7T) ©
HK$10.27).
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+F+_A=+—HLEFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) New Scheme
The Company’s New Scheme was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to eligible
persons or rewarding for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group and will expire on 21
December 2013. Under the New Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
persons, including (i) any director or proposed director,
full-time employee or proposed employee of any
member of the Group or controlling shareholder or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder; (i) any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; and (iii) any
business or joint venture partner, contractor, agent or
representative of any supplier of goods or services to or
any customer or distributor of goods or services of any
member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or
a company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Scheme and the Old
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted

to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital and with
a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

33. BREERSE ()

(i)

#h &t &
RABZHAEIEREEA
EREEXAEBREHAEH
ZEBEBEERMRS I
R _E—=F+-_A=+—
BJEim - RIEFE - A2F
EZgUREBRETAER
AL BREODAEEEMAMKE
NRAIIMESFKEREF 2
BREEIERREE  EREERR
IR RIEH 2 AR
(NVAREBEMKB AR ETZ
EHEZZEFATEA - EMA
ERER R SE R BCRE S 2 (E
I RaE s R (iNVEAEBHKE
R AR KRER
MEmIRBHEBRE £
&P - AEBEMKE QA
EmaRB o HE - EE
1 P PR 3 ¥ M R PR ) 2 AE A

NG

NAERRBRRELIEZ
BRT - BEFHERERT S
R zcERES R ZK
MEEs  NEHBBARQTEM
BB ETRMI0O% - RAR
BEARRNABIBRRELMMAEZFR
T+ R —F R A A @ B
ATAgEREZEBRES R
BHEE  NEHBBERQEFE
AR EITR®DGZ21% ° M
FTEBRERKNBLIERNITE SRR
HEBBEARERA01% REE
/8 38 5,000,000 7% Tt 2 i % 2 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZTZ+F+_A=1+—HLFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) New Scheme (continued)
Options granted must be accepted within 21 days from
the date of option offer, upon payment of HK$1.00
per option. Options may be exercised at any time
from the date of grant of the share option to the 10th
anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

At 31 December 2007, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted previously
and remained outstanding under the New Scheme
was 56,475,000 (2006: 57,500,000), representing
approximately 11.9% (2006: 12.3%) of total issued
share capital of the Company. The options are
exercisable at any time until 21 December 2013.

Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 33. BRR#ERE o)
(i) New Scheme (continued) (i) #FsHE (&)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TEHZEREE (BEEE) I
share options held by the employees (including RNAFIBREZFE
directors):
Number of options
BERESE
Outstanding at ~ Granted during the Outstanding at ~ Exercised during Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 1.1.2006 year 31.12.2006 the year 31.12.2007
RIFERE RIFENE RZEFLE
-B-H +ZRZ+-B +ZAZ+-A
BHAH TEHE TiEE HATE FREH HATE ENiTE HARTE
HK$
A
Directors:
Ex
26 February 27.2.2004 to 16 17,600,000 - 17,600,000 (250,000) 17,350,000
2004 21.12.2013
—EEME ZREMmE
ZAZtRH ZAZTtHE
—Z-ZE
L
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 to 958 - 9,000,000 9,000,000 - 9,000,000
ZRESE 21122013
~ATHA ZEERE
~ATARE
—Z-F
+-A-t+-8
17,600,000 9,000,000 26,600,000 (250,000) 26,350,000
Employees:
& :
26 February 27.2.2004 to 116 26,400,000 - 26,400,000 (775,000) 25,625,000
2004 21.12.2013
—EEME “ZIMmE
ZAZTRA ZAZTtEE
-FCE
+ZR=+-H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 to 958 - 4,500,000 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
ZEEE 21122013
~ATHA ZEERE
~ATARE
—Z-ZF
tZA=t+-R
26,400,000 4,500,000 30,900,000 (775,000) 30,125,000
44,000,000 13,500,000 57,500,000 (1,025,000) 56,475,000

The average closing price of the Company’s share

immediately before the date(s) on which the options
were exercised and at dates of exercise is HK$11.55 (2006:

Nil).

AARI R EBRAETTE B8 2 B RATE
ZRZFHRTERRBNSEL(ZEE
NE &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The aggregate fair value of the option granted on 15 June,
2006 amounting to HK$10,000,000 were calculated using
The Black-Scholes option pricing model. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

Exercise price

Expected volatility
Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

HK$9.58
27.35%
1 year
4.407%
5.27%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over 1 year. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects

of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral

considerations.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to
estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value
of an option varies with different variable of certain subjective

assumptions.

The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$10,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2006 in relation to share

options granted by the Company.

Truly International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
GEMFRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2007

HE—

34.

35.

R FE+ A=+ —HIEFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

All the staff in Hong Kong of the Group are required to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group is required
to contribute 5%, while the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their salaries to the scheme to the extent of
HK$1,000 for each employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees to the state-
managed retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group has an unconditional
government subsidy of HK$9,353,000 (2006: HK$14,022,000)
towards the scientific research development. The amount

has been treated as deferred income and transferred to
income over the useful lives of the relevant assets and
relevant expenditure incurred. This policy has resulted in a
credit to income in the current year of HK$5,456,000 (2006:
HK$629,000).

34.

35.

BIREF = E

KEBzE2EEBREHESMA
HlERERETE - NEEBEELS%
HE - MEBINARZTSIELE
FMc% o MR BREBZHIEE
% /51,0007 7T °

REDBEABEEERD - PEM
J& R AR B K E 2 AR KA A AT
HEHHEEREEEFMETESD
bz AR - AN & B AR K18 A At &
razEEfErRmZTEELMRA

AR -

B R #5 Bf

REE B NEEESBER
[ 7 % {5 1% B AT 45 B 9,353,000 78 7T
(ZZFZRE 114,022,000/ 70) ° %
HECUEZEWRASE - WAREE
EERMEEZHBERZFERS
W AR - WK ERAFE U
A Z #EBREE 55,456,000 L (ZFF
7N4F 629,000 7T) ©
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HE-_ZZ+F+_A=t+—HLEFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

Short-term benefits 52 B A
Post-employment benefits BB 12 48 A
Share based payments VAR 7 7 BB 2 15 2 5k IE

HEALTR S

AEEEEREMTIEERENXE
ZEHMIMT

2007 2006

=t 121 e
HK$'000 HK$/000
FHT T
18,921 11,708

132

10,000

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

37. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 37.

On 21 January 2008, two purchase orders were placed by
Truly Semiconductors Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company, for the purchase of the colour STN

LCD production equipment; and transflective TFT LCD
production machine and equipment at the consideration

of US$26,000,000 and JPY7,900,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$776,340,000 in aggregate) from an
independent third party. Both purchase orders were confirmed
and accepted by the relevant supplier on 21 January 2008.

Details of transaction are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 January 2008.
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY

38. A RIEEMBARER

Proportion
Place of Nominal value of issued ownership
incorporation and fully paid ordinary interest held by
or registration/ share capital/ registered ~ the Company in
Name of subsidiary operation capital 2007 and 2006 Principal activities
KAFE
BBTRE RIEFLER
BREER -3 A%
ML BAEE BEZ
HEBAR &R B/ Emn HMER MARRGLH FEER
Truly Electronics Manufacturing Hong Kong HK$1,000,010 100% Trading of electronic calculators
Limited R 1,000,007 10 EFHEKES
ENEFERAR
Truly Electrical Products Hong Kong HK$200 100% Trading of motor
Company Limited B 200 7T EiES
FHERBRAA
Truly Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$872,894 100% Trading of electronic components
EMIXERAA BB 8728947 T EFHES
Truly Instrument Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% Trading of electric tooth brush
FHERERAT 5 100787 EHTRES
Truly Semiconductors Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% Trading of LCD products
EH+ERERAT B 1,000 7T BRBETGEME S
Truly (USA) Inc. United States of US$20,000 100% Marketing of electronic calculators
America 20,000%775 E%ﬁﬁ%%%
ES
EHNEFERAR PRC US$38,964,115 100% Manufacture of electronic
f 38,964,115% L calculators
WETTHAR
ER¥EEERAF * PRC US$165,131,844 100%  Manufacture of LCD products
E 165,131,84% 7T LERRBETSER
EHER CLE) BRAR* PRC US$1,000,000 100% Manufacture of electric toothbrush
e 1,000,000% 7T BEEY TR
EHME® OLE) FRAR PRC US$1,000,000 100% Manufacture of motor
i 1,000,000% 7T RERT
* wholly foreign owned enterprise * SNEEE R

EMERARARA]

~“EFELEFH
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Except for Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited and Truly
(USA) Inc., all subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,

in the opinion of directors, principally affected the results

or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at 31 December 2007 or at any time during the year.

Truly International Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2007
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Financial Summary

MBERBE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
HE+ZR=+—-HILEE

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

ZZT=F —TITMFE ZTTHE ZTTRF SEElids

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET FET FTET FTET

Revenue WA 1,399,898 3,406,992 4,574,079 4,523,826 6,493,394
Cost of sales HERA (993,521)  (2,615,969)  (3,487,719)  (3,623,940) BNEFELTAHE))
Gross profit EF 406,377 791,023 1,086,360 899,886 1,105,781
Other income EBA 7,861 16,061 27438 79,125 85,669
Administrative expenses THER (131,717) (130,229) (164,459) (178,062) (168,753)
Distribution costs SRR AR (39,189) (54,839) (73,592) (113,666) (139,108)
Impairment losses BIEER - - (14,177) - -
Share of results of an associate fE{E — 5 B4 AR 2% 552 113 (382) (334) (445)
Finance costs s &R (9,665) (14,201) (19,683) (35,766) (57,821)
Profit before tax B 5% A1 i A 234,219 607,928 841,505 651,183 825,323
Income tax expense e L (41,570) (81,427) (139,457) (119,137) (123,294)
Profit for the year NEEHF 192,649 526,501 702,048 532,046 702,029

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
At 31 December
®R+ZA=+-H

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

“ETZF —TTNMF —ZFTRF —TTRF BEelid

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHL THT THET TET FTERT

Total assets EERE 1,731,079 2,408,947 3,428,180 4,094,541 5,902,044
Total liabilities BERE (735,847)  (1,001,008)  (1,490,135)  (1,728,539) PHEAI{FHAE))

Equity attributable to equity K73 5] B 3R e 15 R 1
holders of the Company 995,232 1,407,939 1,938,045 2,366,002

EMERARAR]

—TTLETR
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